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MHLATHUZE WATER
“YOUR PREFERRED WATER SERVICE PROVIDER”

M

hlathuze Water is one of the leading water

Our Services:

world-class service to its customers. The

•

Bulk Water Provision: Raw, Purified and Clarified

•

Bulk Waste Water Disposal

•

Scientific Services

•

Water Resources Management

•

Services to Water Services Authorities (WSA)

•

Implementing Agent for School’s Water and

utilities in South Africa today, providing a

organisation’s commitment and focused direction

in providing safe and dependable water services is

indicative in its consistent success. Based in KwaZuluNatal, Mhlathuze Water’s area of supply covers some
37 000km2 stretching from the uThukela River in the

South and up the East Coast to the Mozambique and
Swaziland borders, around Vryheid and back to the

uThukela River. Within this region, Mhlathuze Water
has built and operates an inter-basin transfer scheme,

a major water treatment plant, an offshore waste water
disposal pipeline, and manages water treatment and
sewerage plants on an agency basis for industry.
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Sanitation Infrastructure, and Working for Water
Programme

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

Vision

To be the water services provider of choice for all stakeholders in the water value chain.

Mission

To provide and expand affordable, sustainable, quality and reliable water services to stakeholders, improve quality of
life and to contribute to development.

Core Values
Enthusiasm
We will treat people with respect,

warmth, integrity, passion, courtesy and
enthusiasm to make them feel special.

Honesty and
Transparency
We will develop a culture of trustworthiness,

transparency and loyalty that responds to

our customers and fellow employees with
honesty and passion.

Excellence

Fairness

We will continue to stretch available

We will maintain high ethical standards,

continue producing work of excellence.

a fair and equitable manner.

resources so that Mhlathuze Water will

and allocate and share responsibilities in

Accountability

Creativity and Innovation

We will make ourselves available to our

We will continually strive for new, different

our stakeholders at all times.

always challenge status quo, mind-set and

customers and remain accountable to all

and better ways of doing what we do and
assumptions.
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MANDATE
CONSTITUTION

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa is the supreme law of the land. No other law or government action can

supersede the provisions of the Constitution. Section 27(1)(b) clearly states, “Everyone has the right to have access to
sufficient food and water” (2) and, “The state must take reasonable legislative and other measures, within its available
resources, to achieve the progressive realisation of each of these rights”.

WATER ACT

Mhlathuze Water is a statutory water utility that was established in terms of Section 176 of the Water Act (Act No. 54
of 1956).

WATER SERVICES ACT

Mhlathuze Water is deemed to be a Water Board in terms of the Water Services Act (Act No. 108 of 1997) of South
Africa.

PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which State Owned Enterprises (SOE) are directed,

controlled and held to account. In addition, the legislative requirements based on a SOE’s enabling legislation,
corporate governance with regard to SOEs are applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act

(PFMA) (Act No. 1 of 1999) and run in tandem with the Protocol on Corporate Governance, which encapsulates the

principles contained in the King III Report on Corporate Governance. In the PFMA schedule, Mhlathuze Water is listed
as a Schedule 3(B) Public entity of the national government state-owned enterprises.
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Note of Appreciation
The mandate of Mhlathuze Water, during the year under review, could not have been fulfilled without the
support, cooperation and contribution of the following stakeholders:
Department of Water and Sanitation
His Majesty, King Goodwill Zwelithini Zulu
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs – KwaZulu-Natal
Department of Education
Department of Basic Education
Department of Environmental Affairs
Office of the Premier in KwaZulu-Natal
Amakhosi
Municipalities
Contractors
Customers
Financial institutions
Professional bodies
Institutes of Higher Education
Schools
Employees of Mhlathuze Water
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Chairperson’s report
involved in the supply of bulk water and the disposal of
waste water, but has also established a major footprint

throughout KwaZulu-Natal in various sanitation projects
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which are aimed at eradicating the bucket system,
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assisting in alleviating backlogs and also restoring

dignity and quality of life to previously disadvantaged
communities.

In the financial year ending 30 June 2014, Mhlathuze
Water continued to meet its mandate by ensuring that
the SANS 241 water quality standards were achieved

and all customers’ water requirements are met. In
addition to SANS 241, Mhlathuze Water continues to
maintain the following certifications and accreditations:
•

Blue Drop

•

ISO 9001 (Quality Management System)

•
•
•

Once again it is an honour to present the Annual
Report of Mhlathuze Water for the year ending
30 June 2014.

A

ISO 14001 (Environmental Management System)
ISO 17025 (Laboratory Management System).

These

credentials

reflect

the

high

standard

of

performance and Mhlathuze Water’s dedication to
delivering only the best to our customers and the

community, which makes us the Water Service Provider

s a Nation we mourned the passing of the

of choice.

former President Mr Nelson Mandela, and as

It will be noted that the financial statements reflect

Mhlathuze Water we committed ourselves to

continuing with his legacy to strive for excellence in
service delivery and to contribute to ensure that all
South Africans have access to quality water services.
The struggle against apartheid saw ordinary South

Africans recognise the importance of equality and
actively fight oppression; this has created an all-

encompassing culture that transcends the social,

cultural, ethnic and historical differences that divide
people and communities. We would be doing a great

disservice to the heroes and heroines of our struggle if

quality and excellence are not placed at the centre of
our efforts to ensure that potable water is delivered to
the people and effluent is disposed of in an acceptable
manner.

It is with great excitement that Mhlathuze Water
welcomes the proclamation of the Ministry of Water and
Sanitation. This is because Mhlathuze Water is not only
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good performance in the organisation’s core business

through effective expenditure controls and investment
on key initiatives while ensuring a good income stream.
The

significant

growth

in

revenue

through

the

secondary activities bears witness to Mhlathuze

Water’s determination to grow its business and area
of influence whilst significantly contributing to the

improvement of the lives of all South Africans. That

being said, we remain grateful and appreciative of the
good working relationship we have with our national as

well as regional organs of state, such as the National
Department of Basic Education, the KwaZulu-Natal

Department of Education and the Department of
Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs.

The relationships we have with our Water Services
Authorities, mainly the City of Mhlathuze Local
Municipality,

uThungulu

District

Municipality

and

uMkhanyakude District Municipality, assist us not only

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

in fulfilling the mandate of providing quality water to our
people from the source to the tap, but also in providing

the basis of the favourable results which we produce
year-on-year.

In celebration of 20 years of freedom and democracy,
I am proud to report that Mhlathuze Water has been

the executives and management, and for ensuring the
sustainability and success of Mhlathuze Water.

I am confident that Mhlathuze Water is poised not only
to deliver on this mandate, but to become a leader in
the Bulk Water Services Sector in KwaZulu-Natal.

appointed as the Implementing Agent for the Jozini

We start the year 2014/2015 facing all water service

the Minister of Water and Sanitation, Mrs Nomvula

to supporting our government in all its objectives. We

from the Jozini Dam and provide water to all people

20 years of freedom, South Africa will indeed continue

Water Scheme, a project which was launched by

delivery challenges head on, and remaining committed

Mokonyane. This water scheme will source water

hereby commit ourselves to ensuring that for the next

in the greater uMkhanyakude region. This is a great

to have a good story to tell.

achievement for our democracy as it is well known that

the Jozini Dam, since its construction in 1974, only
provided water to the minority, namely farmers in the
region, and the greater population of uMkhanyakude

was deprived of access to water from the dam. Once
the project is completed, this will be one of our country’s

most formidable achievements, knowing that we have
improved the quality of life in one of the country’s most
remote areas.

Ms Dudu Myeni

Chairperson of the Board

Mhlathuze Water continues to be the employer of choice

and this is evidenced by our staff turnover rate, which

was 4.64% for the year ending 30 June 2014, which
was below the target of 5% and below the industrial

benchmark of 8%. This impressive outcome can be

attributed to the fact that the vision and objectives of
Mhlathuze Water are developed and shared with its
employees who then own the projects that are executed

knowing well that all their efforts go towards serving
our customers in the industrial areas, empowering the
nation and alleviating suffering in our rural regions.

The imperative of providing safe, drinkable water
and proper sanitation facilities is viewed as not being
the responsibility of government only, but also an
obligation of all sectors operating within the country.
We are mindful of the challenges that lie ahead and

embrace the future in our quest to continue supporting
government endeavours to restore dignity to the
previously disadvantaged people of South Africa.

With great appreciation and yet a semblance of sadness

one has to note that this is the final term of the current
Board of Mhlathuze Water. I would therefore like to take

this opportunity to thank the members of the Board for
their sterling contributions in strategically guiding the
organisation to success, their continuous support of
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chief executive’s report
Product Quality
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choice by our customers, our distinctive quality of
water supply during the year has once again been

splendidly certified under each risk category of the new
South African National Standards 241:2011. Mhlathuze
Water continues to reinvigorate its quest to sustain

impeccable public health. Mhlathuze Water still makes

every endeavour to retain its Blue Drop status achieved
for the Nsezi Water Treatment Plant, and also supports
its customers to attain or achieve the same.

Customer-Centric
Our instinctive ability to consistently provide splendid
customer service remains an integral part of our

business. Being a customer-centric organisation, we

maintain effective communication as it is of paramount
importance to keep our customers abreast of our

business’s essential activities and undertakings. We

have created a platform for our customers to air their

With a myriad of positives resulting from Mhlathuze
Water’s operations during the year, this year
marks another milestone as we celebrate 20 years
of freedom and democracy in the lives of every
South African citizen. As a country we have made
remarkable progress in moving towards a better
South Africa, and as an organisation we played a
significant role in making great strides to restore
the dignity of our people in ensuring access to clean,
drinkable water and proper sanitation facilities.

I

t is indeed a great pleasure to walk you down the
path of Mhlathuze Water for the year 2013/2014,
which is characterised by a commitment to achieve

service offerings. For this reason a customer survey
was conducted and the results indicate increased

client confidence in Mhlathuze Water as a water service
provider of choice.

The robust discussions with our customers during
the tariff consultation process allowed for information

sharing and interactive participation, which set the tone

for an improved and transparent relationship with our
customers.

Mhlathuze Water has left no stone unturned in our quest

to improve our relationships with the Water Services
Authorities. An example of this is the memorandum of

understanding signed with the uMkhanyakude District

Municipality to be the Implementing Agent for the water

our vision “To be the water services provider of

infrastructure in the area.

choice for all stakeholders in the water value chain”.

Building new partnerships whilst maintaining existing

Continuous improvement on our erstwhile success
remains our prerogative and this report directs the
focus on achievements and challenges met throughout
the year under review.
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Affairs (COGTA) as their Implementing Agent. Services

Mhlathuze Water was recognised once again as an

interim water supply or rudimentary systems, the

Employer of the Year Award at the Zululand Business

include the provision of potable water and sanitation,
provision of VIP toilets, the eradication of the bucket

toilet system across the Province of KwaZulu-Natal, and
to provide interim water relief throughout the Province.

Our current capacity, expertise and resources in the field
of Engineering has strengthened our relationship with
the Department of Education, and Mhlathuze Water has

been appointed by the Department of Basic Education

achiever when the organisation was awarded the
Excellence Awards during the year under review.

One of the key highlights was the launch of the
Mhlathuze Water clinic at the head office complex,

which will assist the organisation to manage health and
wellness initiatives.

School Infrastructure Development Initiative (ASIDI),

Organisational Certification and
Accreditation

schools with toilets and water.

To

to implement a programme known as the Accelerated

which is currently under construction to supply 71

Further to this appointment, Mhlathuze Water was also
appointed by the Provincial Department of Education
to provide a similar service with an approved budget in
2013/2014 of R214 million earmarked for 174 schools.

be

“the

preferred

water

service

provider”,

Mhlathuze Water strives to maintain the ISO 9001

Quality Management System certification, and thus
focuses on the continuous improvement of business

performance and ensures that our product and services
efficiently meet customer and applicable statutory and

regulatory requirements. The safety and well-being of

People-Centred

our employees, customers and stakeholders is a top

Living up to our core values is a commitment and

implemented and maintained the OHSAS18001 Health

effective, engaging and inspiring, all our employees

maintained the ISO 14001 Environmental Management

priority for the organisation, and therefore we have

responsibility for everyone in our organisation. To be

and Safety certification. The organisation has also

must “walk the talk” and lead by example in their daily

System Certification.

work; in this context, actions speaks louder than words.
Therefore, at Mhlathuze Water we aim to achieve
competitive

advantage

through

positioning

the

We are currently at an advanced stage of attaining
the SANS 16001: Disease and Wellness Management
System certification.

organisation as a leading provider of a full range
of water and related services, focusing on a more

comprehensive approach to ensure the building of
the capacity of our people for their own growth and to

improve service delivery both internally and externally.
One of our main focus areas and achievements has

been continuous training, development and mentoring

of the operation’s employees in order to enhance their
skills and abilities such that they are able to attain formal

relevant qualifications that are aligned to the national

Financial Performance
The financial status of Mhlathuze Water reflects a

positive and successful financial year with the turnover
increasing to R346 million resulting in a net surplus of
R79.1 million, thus re-affirming the continuous operating
cost efficiency.

A substantial growth in section 30 activities saw

qualification framework.

the organisation’s other income increasing by 42%

We have maintained strict safety, health, environment
and quality (SHEQ) standards, which paid off
handsomely as there were no injuries to staff during the
year under review and Mhlathuze Water was awarded
with the Excellence Award by the Federated Employers
Mutual Assurance in second position for the Best

Operational Optimisation

Health and Safety Performance.

compared to prior year.

One of the key accomplishments during the year under
review is the Nsezi intake pump station upgrade. The
R35 million upgrade on the intake will ensure continuous

A n n u a l
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water supply to our customers should it happen that our

main raw water supply from the Weir Transfer Scheme
not be available. Both the intake and the weir raw water

abstraction points allow for the utility to choose either
of the raw water sources or mix both sources in order to
obtain optimal water quality.

The process of implementing the SCADA system is
currently underway. This will enable all the critical plant
operating parameters to be monitored on the computer

based system by the operators in the control room and

will ensure data capturing and back-up of information.

The system will also allow for the plant automation in

future to achieve effective operational and process
control optimisation.

Our Commitment
It is with immense pride that I announce our
achievement in receiving Level 2 BBBEE certification.
This asserts our commitment towards empowering
previously and historically disadvantaged individuals

and communities through our transformation initiatives.
Great strides continue to be made towards achieving

the target adopted at our strategy session, which is to
spend at least 51% of Mhlathuze Water’s discretionary

expenditure on black-owned entities. The current year’s

discretionary BBBEE amounts to 66% of the total
expenditure.

As we enter the new financial year 2014/2015 with a

more focused commitment to succeed, and a strong

commitment to provide exceptional customer service,

infrastructure Development

we are confident of the future prospects of our business

We are mindful of the critical role infrastructure

and the challenges ahead.

development plays in the socio-economic development
and growth of the country. Our mandate as an
Implementing Agent is to provide a sustainable water
solution whilst simultaneously creating new jobs and
supporting the delivery of basic services to the people
of our country. The following projects were underway
during the period under review:
The Hlabisa Bulk Water Supply project in the
uMkhanyakude

District

Municipality

entails

the

construction of bulk water pipelines, reservoirs and
pump stations in the Hlabisa area. This was a multiyear project and will be completed in 2014 at a cost of
R205 million.

The Dukuduku On-site Resettlement Project will provide

solutions to the water supply challenges of Dukuduku,
Khula Villages and the surrounding areas. This project
will ensure that there is an equitable distribution of

water to all users. The project will be completed in 2014
at a cost of R146 million.

and of our resolve to manage both the opportunities

appreciation
Having assumed the position of Chief Executive, I wish

to thank the Chairperson, Members of the Board and

the Executive Committee for their continued support

and confidence displayed in me during the 2013/2014
financial year. Your relentless guidance, insightful

leadership and mentorship were instrumental in steering

the organisation to be the water service provider of
choice to all stakeholders in the water value chain.

I express my gratitude to the Department of Water and

Sanitation, both regional and National, for the trust
they have placed in the Management and Board of

Mhlathuze Water. Your continuous support provided
us the opportunity to create a positive organisational
platform

for

strategic

implement a bulk water supply in the rural area between

Jozini and Ingwavuma town. This project covers

the construction of pump stations, reservoirs, water

treatment plant and laying of steel pipes. The project

and day-to-day operations in order to deliver on our

Lastly, I would like to convey my sincere appreciation to

our customers for the confidence they have in Mhlathuze
Water and to our employees for their selfless dedication
in ensuring the ongoing success of the organisation.

will be completed in the 2016/2017 financial year at a
cost of R676 million.
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decision-making

mandate of providing good quality water.

Jozini/Ingwavuma Bulk Water Supply project is to
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Mr Sibusiso Makhanya
Chief Executive Officer
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
Purpose

The purpose of the Audit and Risk Committee is:
•

USA
MR M

LU
XU

C

accurate reporting and financial statements
in
•

Membership

•

•

Elliot Mzimela

•
•

requirements and accounting standards.
To

provide

the

Chief

•

•

•

Brian Rawlins
Nica Gevers

Bonginkosi Mshengu – Independent

members of Mhlathuze Water.

internal and external auditor’s access to the

of the Audit and Risk Committee.

To meet with the external auditors at least on
an annual basis and discuss External Audit
matters.

To provide a forum for discussing business
risks

and

control

issues

W a t e r

and

developing

recommendations for consideration by the Board.
To

monitor

enterprise-wide,

operational,

strategic, regulatory, safety and other risks, as

implemented to curtail and minimise risk.
To

review

Mhlathuze

Water’s

financial

statements and other compliance reports.

To oversee the activities of the organisation

and ensure coordination between internal and
external audit.

To perform duties assigned to it by the Water
Services Act, and as governed by other
legislative requirements.

To receive and deal with any complaints

concerning the accounting practices, internal

•

statements or related matters.

To conduct annual review of the Audit and Risk
Committee’s work and terms of reference and
make recommendations to the Board to ensure

that the Audit and Risk Committee operates at
maximum effectiveness.

M h l a t h u z e

Officer,

audit or the content and audit of its financial

All members of the Committee are not executive

12

Financial

legal

by way of monitoring controls that have been

The current Audit and Risk Committee members are:

•

applicable

well as to ensure adequate mitigation thereof

The Audit and Risk Committee was appointed by the

•

the

in relation to any matter falling within the remit

•

Musa Xulu (Chairperson)

with

or any member of the Committee as is required

This report is provided by the Audit and Risk
Committee in respect of the 2013/2014 financial
year of Mhlathuze Water in compliance with
section 38(1)(a)(ii) and 77(a) of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA). The Audit and Risk
Committee’s operations are guided by a detailed
charter that is informed by the PFMA and King III as
approved by the Board.

•

compliance

Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee

•

year.

relating to the safeguarding of assets, the
reporting processes, and the preparation of

IR
HA

Board of Directors in respect of the 2013/2014 financial

To assist the Board in discharging its duties

operation of adequate systems, control and
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audit and risk report
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Execution of Functions
The Audit and Risk Committee has executed its

•

duties and responsibilities during the financial year in
accordance with its terms of reference as they relate
to Mhlathuze Water’s accounting, internal auditing,

•

internal control and financial reporting practices.

•

During the year under review the Committee:
•

Reviewed the external audit plan and the budgeted

•

Reviewed the audit, evaluated the effectiveness

audit fees payable to the external auditor.

•
•

of the auditor and its independence, and

•
•

•

•

•

Obtained an annual written statement from the
auditor that its independence was not impaired.

•

Considered

the

appropriateness

of

the

accounting policies adopted and changes
thereto.

Reviewed the external auditor’s audit report.

Reviewed the representation letter relating to
the financial statements.
Considered

any

problems

identified

and

reviewed as well as any significant legal and tax
the financial statements.

Has scheduled a date to meet separately with
the internal and external auditors.

auditor and approved all non-audit services

other matters:

non-audit services provided by the external
undertaken.

Obtained assurances that no member of the

external audit team was hired by Mhlathuze
Water during the year.

forensic audit, the Audit and Risk Committee, amongst
•

Reviewed and approved the annual internal

•

Considered the reports by the internal and

Obtained assurances from the external auditor

were identified and reported by the external

•

and

reviewed

annual

•

for Mhlathuze Water before submission to the
Board for approval.
Reviewed

compliance

with

the

•

accounting records were maintained and that
unauthorised use or disposal thereof.

Reviewed significant issues raised by internal

and forensic audit processes and the adequacy
internal forensic audit findings.

Based on the above, the Audit and Risk

Committee formed the opinion that there were

no material breakdowns in internal controls,

financial

including financial controls, business risk

conditions of loan covenants and determined

management and maintaining effective material

that the capital of Mhlathuze Water was
adequate.

Received assurance that proper and adequate

of corrective action in response to significant

financial

statements as well as all financial information

effective internal control systems.

the systems safeguarded the assets against

amongst other matters:
Examined

external auditor on Mhlathuze Water’s systems
business risk management and maintenance of

maintained.

Considered whether any reportable irregularities

audit charter and audit plan.

of internal control including financial controls,

that adequate accounting records were being

In respect of the financial statements, the Committee,

•

accounting judgements.

In respect of internal control and internal audit, including

2005, and determined that there were none.

•

unusual transactions, fruitless expenditure and

Determined the nature and extent of all

auditors in terms of Auditing Profession Act,

•

Considered accounting treatments, significant

matters that could have a material impact on

evaluated the external auditor’s internal quality
control procedures.

going concern.

control systems.

Ensured that the annual financial statements

In respect of risk management and information

Water as at the end of the financial year and

relevant to its functions:

fairly present the financial position of Mhlathuze

the results of operations and cash flows for
the financial year, and considered the basis on
which Mhlathuze Water was determined to be a

technology, the Audit and Risk Committee, in so far as
•

Reviewed Mhlathuze Water’s policies on risk

assessment and risk management, including
fraud risks and information technology risks as

A n n u a l
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they pertain to financial reporting and the going
concern assessment, and found them to be
•
•
•

sound.

Considered and reviewed the findings and
recommendations of the internal auditor.

Reviewed Mhlathuze Water’s strategic risks
and found mitigating factors to be in place.

Reviewed and approved the Business Continuity
Management Policy, the Business Continuity
Plan and the IT Disaster Recovery Plan.

•

The criteria specified for independence by the

Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors and
international regulatory bodies.

Annual Financial Statements
Following review by the Audit and Risk Committee of

the annual financial statements of Mhlathuze Water for

the year ended 30 June 2014, the Committee is of the
view that in all material respects they comply with the
relevant provisions of the Water Services Act, South

In respect of legal and regulatory requirements to the

African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting

statements, the Audit and Risk Committee:

date and the results of operations and cash flows for

extent that they may have an impact on the financial
•

•

Reviewed with management legal matters that
could have a material impact on Mhlathuze
Water.

Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of Mhlathuze Water’s procedures to ensure
compliance

•

with

legal

responsibilities.

and

regulatory

Monitored complaints received via Mhlathuze
Water’s ethics line, including complaints or
concerns regarding accounting matters, internal

accounting records, the content of financial

statements, potential violations of the law and
questionable accounting and auditing matters.

In respect of the coordination of assurance activities,
the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the plans and
work outputs of the internal and external auditors and

concluded that these were adequate to address all
significant financial risks facing the business.

Independence of External Auditor

Practice and fairly present the financial position at that
the year ended. Having achieved its objectives, the

Committee has recommended the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014 for approval to the
Mhlathuze Water Board.

Going Concern
The going concern assumption is a fundamental
principle in the preparation of financial statements.

Mhlathuze Water has applied and complies with

applicable accounting principles which assume that

Mhlathuze Water will continue to exist long enough to
carry out its objectives and commitments and will not
liquidate in the foreseeable future.

Under the going concern assumption, Mhlathuze

Water is ordinarily viewed as continuing in business

for the foreseeable future with neither the intention

nor the necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or
seeking protection from creditors pursuant to laws or
regulations.

All assets and liabilities were recorded on the basis that

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that KPMG

the entity will be able to realise its assets, discharge

following factors into account:

normal course of business.

are independent of Mhlathuze Water after taking the
•

The auditor does not, except as external auditor

its liabilities, and obtain refinancing (if necessary) in the
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee:

or in rendering permitted non-audit services,
receive any remuneration or other benefit from

•

•

Mhlathuze Water.

The auditor’s independence was not impaired
by any consultancy, advisory or other work
undertaken by the auditor.

The auditor’s independence was not prejudiced
as a result of any previous appointment as
auditor.
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Mr Musa Xulu
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
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Corporate Governance
The Board of Mhlathuze Water was appointed by
the previous Minister of Water Affairs, Ms Edna
Molewa, in accordance with the provisions of the
Water Services Act (Act No. 108 of 1997) for a term
of office of four (4) years with effect from 1 March
2011 to 28 February 2015.

T

Board

subscribes

recommendations

of

the

and

King

adheres

to

Commission

the
on

corporate governance as well as the South African

Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(“SA GAAP”) and the Public Finance Management Act,
(“PFMA”). As per King III, the Board is fully aware of its

responsibilities, disclosure and discharging of its duties

he Board is accountable and responsible to the

in the best interests of the organisation. In ensuring that

the organisation. The Board attends to matters

has a written charter that governs its powers, functions

shareholder for the performance and affairs of

of policy and sets strategic direction, and the Executive

Committee executes the plans and reports to the
Board on a regular basis. The Board regularly evaluates
economic, political, social and legal issues, as well as

any other relevant external matters that may influence or
affect the development of the business or the interests
of shareholders and, if appropriate, obtains independent
expert advice. The Board is also responsible for ensuring

a comprehensive system of internal control policies and
procedures is operative, and for compliance with sound
corporate governance principles.

16
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there is good governance in the organisation, the Board
and responsibilities.
Mhlathuze

Water

recognises

that

transparency,

disclosure, financial controls and accountability are the
pillars of any good system of corporate governance

thus ensuring that it is the organisation’s endeavour to

attain the highest level of governance to enhance the
stakeholder’s value.

Mhlathuze Water offers its Board training under the

Institute of Directors in Southern Africa (IODSA) umbrella
to ensure that members are kept abreast with information
that is relevant to corporate governance.

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

Meet the Board
DUDU MYENI

The Chairperson of the Board. Ms Myeni is a seasoned entrepreneur who has received
various accolades for her achievements as a Businesswoman, including the Shoprite

Checkers Woman of the Year Award in the Education Category, the first woman to win
the prestigious South African Philanthropist Award in 2007 and being nominated as

Businesswoman of the Year by the South African Chamber of Commerce in 2007. Ms Myeni

is one of the founding members and a stalwart of the Black Business Council, has been
an honourary member of Lattice (USA) since 2007 and is a current member of the Institute

of Directors. Ms Myeni is currently the Chairperson of the Board of South African Airways,
Chairperson of the South African Association of Water Utilities and President of the South
African Water Association.

POPPY DLAMINI
The Chairperson of the HR/Remuneration Committee and Member of the Service
Delivery Committee, she has been actively involved in the environmental and conservation
sectors for over 20 years at grassroots, professional and executive levels. She project-

managed the highly acclaimed Umgeni Water Sustainability Report, which won several
international awards. She introduced and led the implementation of global best practice and

environmental conservation management, including the global reporting initiative pertaining
to corporate governance. She currently serves on the Board of iSimangaliso Wetland Park.

THEMBINKOSI MADIKANE
The Chairperson of the Service Delivery Committee and Member of the HR/
Remuneration Committee, is a professional engineer with more than 20 years’ experience
in the consulting engineering environment and he is a Managing Director of Igoda Projects.

He is a Chairperson of Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA)’s Professional Engineers

Registration Committee and serves on various other ECSA’s committees. Mr Madikane is

the Senior Vice President of South Africa Institute of Electrical Engineers and also a council
member. He is a fellow of the South African Academy of Engineering and South Africa
Institute of Electrical Engineers.

MUSA XULU
The Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee and Member of the HR/Remuneration

Committee, he hails from a financial background. He brings sales and marketing, auditing

and finance expertise to the Board. He is an Associate Accountant under the SA Institute of
Chartered Accountants, and a member of the SA Institute of Public Accountants.

FREDERIK BOSMAN
Member of the HR and Remuneration Committee and Member of the Finance
Committee, Mr Bosman has worked for local government since 1973 and has been a member

of the South African Institute of Civil Engineers since 1975 and a Fellow since 1986. He is

an Honorary Fellow and past President of the Institute of Municipal Engineering of Southern
Africa. He is a member of the KZN Planning Development Tribunal, and elected Councilor

for the City of uMhlathuze and the uThungulu District Municipal Council respectively since
May 2011. Mr. Bosman previously served on Mhlathuze Water’s Board from 1980 till 1994.
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MUSA MZIMELA

Member of the Service Delivery Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee, he has

vast experience in public administration, human resource management, and finance and
stakeholder management. He has also served in the union structures of the print and paper
industries.

NONHLANHLA KHUMALO

Member of the Service Delivery Committee and the Finance Committee, she has

experience in driving rural development, programme management and social infrastructure

development. In her current role at the Independent Development Trust, she is a central
driving force of influence regarding National and Provincial programmes and has been active
in the growth and diversification of the KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) portfolio.

AMITA BADUL

Member of the Service Delivery Committee and the Finance Committee, Mrs Badul is
experienced in Local Government Management and Adult Basic Education and Training. She
is a member of the Executive Committee of the iLembe District Municipality and Chairs its

Finance Portfolio Committee. Mrs Badul is also a member of iLembe District Municipality’s
Budget and Audit Committee. She is also a member of the Inter-Governmental Forum and a
member of the Board of Stanger Provincial Hospital.

NICA GEVERS

Member of the Audit and Risk Committee, she brings financial acumen spanning 30 years
in the retail, engineering and public sectors, most of which have been in Management and

Executive positions. Ms Gevers, is a registered Chartered Accountant (CA) and assists the
Board with its management of financial risks and compliance with legislation. Her experience

assists in driving the long-term funding strategy for the organisation and its sound financial
management and practices. She is a member of the South African Institute of Chartered
Accountants (SAICA).

BRIAN RAWLINS

Member of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Service Delivery Committee, he

hails from an academic background and further offers hydrological research and training
services. He is currently a senior lecturer in the Hydrology Department at the University

of Zululand. Mr Rawlins’ expertise in hydrology, environmental impact assessments, water
resource management and geohydrology adds great value to the Board.

ADVOCATE SIMOSENKOSI CHAMANE

Member of the HR/Remuneration Committee and Finance Committee, he has vast

knowledge and extensive experience in the field of law and has served in many political
structures. He is currently the General Manager - Public Transport at the KZN Department of
Transport. He is a member of the Society of Advocates, KZN Durban Bar.
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Board Committees
The Board of Mhlathuze Water has instituted the following
committees to perform its functions as well as to assist

and support management with specific support and
knowledge. All committees operate under a mandate
from the Board and all decisions are recommended to
the Board and recorded in their official minutes.

All Board members have an open invitation to attend

any committee meeting that they are not a serving
member of in an observer capacity only, if they so wish.

Audit and Risk Committee

– This Committee is

responsible for appointing auditors and ensuring the

company’s financial reporting is accurate and complete.  
They concentrate on audit issues, risk, internal controls
and compliance oversight of the internal and external

auditors. The Committee, in carrying out its duties, has
due regard for the principles of governance and code
of best practice as contained in the King reports. The
Committee meets at least four times a year.

Finance Committee – This Committee considers the

financial performance of Mhlathuze Water, budgeting
issues and any other functions the prevailing standards

of corporate governance require of such a committee.
The Finance Committee’s specific responsibilities include

recommending policies that maintain and improve the
financial health and integrity of the organisation, and

reviewing and recommending a long-range financial plan

for the organisation. The Committee is also responsible for

monitoring the financial performance of the organisation

as a whole and its major subsidiary organisations or
business lines against approved budgets, long-term
trends and industry benchmarks.

Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee – This Committee concentrates on staff
matters, organisational structure, remuneration and any
other functions the prevailing standards of corporate
governance require of such a committee. The role of

the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its

corporate governance responsibilities with regard to

remuneration and strategic human resources matters,

succession planning and talent development activities
and programmes, as well as providing effective

remuneration policies, having regard for the creation of

value for shareholders and the external remuneration
market.

Service Delivery Committee
concentrates

on

the

service

– This Committee

being

delivered

by

stakeholders, evaluation of large projects, oversight
of stakeholder interaction and any other functions the
prevailing standards of corporate governance require of
such a committee.

Board Nominations Committee

– This is an ad

hoc committee contemplated in the Water Services Act

for the appointment of Board Members. Its membership
is statutorily determined. For casual vacancies in

the Board, the candidates are interviewed by the
Nominations Committee, a nominee of the Provincial

Premier and a nominee of the Department of Water and
Sanitation.

including establishing and implementing a human
resources strategy to ensure that appropriately talented

and trained employees are available to achieve the
business strategy. The Committee is also responsible for

overseeing the appropriate performance management,
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Board and Committee Meeting Attendance – July 2013 to June 2014
Board
Meeting

Board Strategy

Board Training

Board Meetings

Board Nomination
Committee

Strategy
Held

Strategy
Attended

Training
Held

Training
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

D. Myeni

1

1

-

-

4

4

1

1

A. Badul

1

1

-

-

4

4

1

-

F. Bosman

1

1

-

-

4

3

1

-

C. Chamane

1

1

-

-

4

3

1

-

P. Dlamini

1

1

-

-

4

3

1

1

N. Gevers

1

1

-

-

4

4

1

-

N. Khumalo

1

1

-

-

4

3

1

-

T. Madikane

1

1

-

-

4

4

1

1

E. Mzimela

1

1

-

-

4

3

1

-

B. Rawlins

1

1

-

-

4

4

1

-

M. Xulu

1

1

-

-

4

3

1

1

Committee Meetings Report
The Board is governed by a code of ethics and all sub-committees function in terms of the Charter approved by the

Board. Continuous education and training is provided for Board members to improve and maintain the effectiveness
of the Board. Board meetings have been attended and the details of activities are disclosed below.
Finance Committee

HR/Remuneration
Committee

Audit Committee

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

D. Myeni

4

-

4

-

4

1

4

-

A. Badul

4

4

4

3

4

-

4

-

F. Bosman

4

4

4

-

4

4

4

-

C. Chamame

4

2

4

-

4

4

4

-

P. Dlamini

4

-

4

2

4

4

4

-

N. Gevers

4

-

4

-

4

-

4

4

N. Khumalo

4

2

4

1

4

-

4

-

T. Madikane

4

-

4

4

4

4

4

-

E. Mzimela

4

-

4

3

4

-

4

3

B. Rawlins

4

-

4

3

4

-

4

4

M. Xulu

4

-

4

-

4

4

4

4

B. Mshengu*

4

-

4

-

4

-

4

4

* Independent Member
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Governing Bodies
Mhlathuze Water actively embraces the King Report
on Governance for South Africa 2009 (King III), which

provides a list of best practice principles to assist and
guide directors. King III provides guidance on various

•

Provide a mechanism for the objective review
of personal outside interests.

By implementing the above, the organisation is in a
position to:
•

governance related aspects, including:

Allow individuals, where appropriate, to acquire
and

maintain

personal

outside

interests,

provided that these do not interfere with, or

•

Ethical leadership and corporate citizenship;

•

Boards and directors;

•

Audit committees;

•

The governance of risk;

•

The governance of information technology (IT);

•

Compliance with laws, rules, codes and

any conflict of interest by providing a mechanism

•

Internal audit;

conditional approval) of appropriate personal

•

Governing stakeholder relationships; and

•

Integrated reporting and disclosure.

standards;

have the potential to interfere with, their duties
to the company, or improperly influence the

judgements expected of them when acting on
behalf of the company; and
•

Protect individuals from misplaced charges of
for the objective review and approval (including
outside interests held by individuals.

Enterprise Risk Management
Disclosure of Interest
On an annual basis and at every Board and Committee
meeting, members declare any interests and commit

to non-disclosure of information that could unfairly
advantage or disadvantage a party. Disclosure and

transparency are the partners of good governance. They
demonstrate the quality and reliability of information,

financial and non-financial provided, by management
to lenders, shareholders and the public.

Conflict of Interest
Conflict of interest is addressed through the Code of

Conduct that applies to directors, management and
employees in regulating conditions that constitute or
could constitute a conflict.

The objectives of this Code of Conduct are to:
•

Promote transparency and avoid business-

•

Ensure fairness in dealing with the interests of

related conflicts of interest;

all employees, other affected individuals and
the company;

•

Document the process for disclosure, approval
and review of activities that may amount to

The Board ensures, on an annual basis, that
adequate and suitable internal controls are in place

and appropriate to meet future needs. Mhlathuze
Water’s approach is to give considerable focus to the

organisational objectives at strategic and operational

levels. Areas of non-compliance have been addressed

and the organisation is striving to meet and exceed
customers’ and stakeholders’ expectations.

The Mhlathuze Water Board and its Executive
Management are responsible for the governance of

risk. Mhlathuze Water annually performs an in-depth
review of its organisational risk profile. Risk workshops

were conducted for the 2013/2014 financial year for all
departments.

Departmental risk registers were compiled and risks
elevated and incorporated into a new risk table for the

organisation. This was done to ensure that financial
risks identified are being monitored and managed

by the organisation. Mhlathuze Water’s strategic

risk profile, which comprises risks that could have a
significant impact on the achievement of its strategic
objectives, are continually reviewed and reported to the
Board through the Audit and Risk Committee.

actual, potential or perceived conflicts of
interest; and
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Both strategic and operational risk assessments were
performed:

Strategic Risks

Operational Risks

Strategic risks and
opportunities that could
significantly affect the
organisation’s ability to
implement strategy, many
of which can be mitigated if
they are well understood and
proactively addressed.

Operational risks
and opportunities
that are managed
proactively every day by
implementing policies
and procedures.

Strategic Risks

The main purpose of strategic risk assessments that
are performed on an annual basis are to identify and
assess, through a structured and facilitated process,
the strategic risks which may prevent Mhlathuze Water
from achieving strategic goals.

Mhlathuze Water is committed to complying with the
provisions of the Protected Disclosures Act (Act No.
26 of 2000) in ensuring that whistleblowers who make
disclosures are protected in terms of the Act and are
not victimised and subjected to occupational detriment
for blowing the whistle on improprieties.
Mhlathuze Water has a whistle blower’s hotline which
has been an effective tool for the Board to help address
all forms of corporate irregularities that have happened
at Mhlathuze Water. The contact number has been
made available to all employees, stakeholders, and the
public at large.
Matters have been brought to the Board’s attention,
and these have been investigated by Internal Auditors.

Mhlathuze Water’s Top 10 Strategic Risks as
Identified During Risk Workshops:

Legal Framework

1

Infrastructure failure

2

Increased competition

3

Ineffective and inefficient procurement

4

Environmental damage

5

Increasing input cost (electricity and chemicals)

The Board and Management of Mhlathuze Water have
pledged and exercised their commitment to discharging
their duty to be recognised as a good corporate citizen
by ensuring compliance to good corporate governance
principles that are inherent in sound business practice.

6

Skills shortage

7

Fraud and corruption

8

Funding constraints

9

Availability of water in terms of quality and
quantity

10

Compliance to relevant regulations and
legislations

Management will continue evaluating and monitoring
the risks on an ongoing basis. A Risk Manager was
appointed during the period 2013/2014 and a Risk
Champions Forum was introduced to ensure that
appropriate procedures are in place to identify, assess
and manage risks, as well as to monitor implementation
of Risk Management Procedures and reporting.

Whistle Blower’s Report
The Board of Mhlathuze Water approved a Whistle
Blower’s policy. The Board’s objective in approving
the policy was to create a positive whistle blowing
culture, which is a critical element in the success

22

of any risk management system. Promoting better
risk management helps to prevent the need for more
regulation and intervention by regulators and legislators.
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These are prescribed within a specific applicable legal
and regulatory framework for public entities such as the
Public Finance Management Act, the Water Services
Act and the King III Report, which are the cornerstones
of these prerequisites.
Changes to the accounting standards that impacted
on the financial reporting have been acknowledged
and significantly adhered to in order to ensure minimal
deviations from the requirements. Mhlathuze Water
realises that compliance is an ongoing process and will
therefore continue to seek sound and innovative ways
to ensure full compliance in all the reporting obligations
to both its customers and stakeholders to ensure
transparency, effectiveness and accuracy.

Materiality and Significance
Framework
The Board approved a policy that defines both the levels of
significance and materiality. The Delegations of Authority
Policy was reviewed to align them to the framework.

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

Supply Chain Management
The Supply Chain Management Policy was reviewed to

ensure alignment to the National Treasury Supply Chain
Regulations and other applicable legislation relating

to Supply Chain Management. Deliberate efforts

were made to increase expenditure on black-owned
businesses. Total spend on goods and services for the

2013/2014 financial year was R857 million, of which
R564 million (66%) was spent on companies that are

more than 51% black-owned, and 19.3% (equivalent

to R165 million) was spent on empowered companies.
The target for 2013/2014 was 51% of discretionary

spend and the actual achieved was 66% as per the
graph below.

BEE Spend at at 30 June 2014
NON-BEE

14%

GOVERNMENT

1%

BLACK
EMPOWERED

while leaving a legacy for the future.

19%

Contributions are made to sustainable projects aimed

at the upliftment and empowerment of women and
children. One of the projects amongst others, was the
BLACK-OWNED

66%

Mhlathuze Water’s Supplier’s Day workshop was held
in May 2014. This event included presenters from the

South African Revenue Services (SARS), Construction

Industry Development Board (CIDB), the Department
of Labour, Provincial Treasury and the Small Enterprise

Development Agency (SEDA) amongst others to render
presentations to the service providers. The event was

a resounding success and will assist in the growth and
development of emerging SMMEs.

Through hard work and dedication, the organisation has
improved its BBBEE rating from Level 3 to Level 2.

Corporate Social Investment
Conscious of being part of the greater community,
Mhlathuze Water has set aside funds to improve the
quality of lives of people through sustainable projects.
Mhlathuze Water has a responsibility to the communities
in which it operates, and is mindful of the impact its

operations has on people and their living conditions,

vegetable garden at the Zamukuhlakanipha Luncheon
Club situated in the KwaNgwanase area under

Umhlabuyalingana Local Municipality, which is within
the uMkhanyakude District Municipality. The aim of
the vegetable garden was to promote self-reliance,

physical activity and social interaction, and contribute

to the health and well-being of the senior citizens.
Mhlathuze Water is mindful of the vast challenges that

lie ahead in respect of access to quality education by

young people, their health and well-being. It is for this
reason the organisation contributed towards grooming
our leaders of tomorrow by providing children in various

schools within the uMhlathuze Local Municipality area

with school uniforms and shoes. Mhlathuze Water will
continuously participate in government and corporate
initiatives that are instrumental in improving community
development and sustainability.

Mhlathuze Water annually makes CSI funds available for
the benefit of youths to pursue their tertiary education.
For the reporting year 2013/2014, R47 000 was spent on

students from the greater Zululand area who qualified

to study engineering and finance at universities and
management colleges.
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Meet the executive committee

From left: Chief Financial Officer: Brian Ndaba; General Manager – Scientific Services: Swaswa Ntlhoro;
Chief Executive Officer: Sibusiso Makhanya; Company Secretary: Nokubonga Ndlovu; and Human Resources
Manager: Mandla Myeni.

Sibusiso Makhanya: Chief Executive Officer
Qualifications:

Diploma in Civil Engineering; Higher Diploma in Civil Engineering;
Bachelor of Commerce (Economics); Postgraduate Diploma in
Marketing Management; Masters in Business Administration
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Industrial Development Zone Board Member
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Brian Ndaba: Chief Financial Officer
Qualifications:

B.Com (Accounting) Degree

Areas of Expertise:

Finance, Auditing and Risk Management

Years of Service at
Mhlathuze Water:

18 months

Positions on other
Boards:

City of uMhlathuze: Performance Audit Committee

Mandla Myeni: Human Resources Manager
Qualifications:

Bachelor of Technology Degree in Management; B.Com
Degree (Industrial Psychology); Diploma in Personnel
Management

Areas of Expertise:

Human Resources

Years of Service at
Mhlathuze Water:

19 years

Swaswa Ntlhoro: GM Scientific Services
Qualifications:

BSc. (HONS) Degree; Postgraduate Diploma in Management

Areas of Expertise:

Chemistry and Applied Chemistry

Years of Service at
Mhlathuze Water:

6 years

Nokubonga Ndlovu: Company Secretary
Qualifications:

LLB Degree (Admitted Attorney)

Areas of Expertise:

Corporate Governance and Commercial Litigation

Years of Service at
Mhlathuze Water:

7 months
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MO A > G
OP1, Ta), b)
& c). OP2,
Ta)

MO A > G

MO E

MO A>G

MO B

4. Financial
Reporting
Compliance

5. Staff Turnover

6. Board
Member
Attendance

7.Effective
Internal Controls
and Risk
Management

MO B,OP2,
T a)

SG 1 (SO 1.2 )
SG 3 (SO 3.1)

SG 1 (SO 1.2
SG 2 (SO 2.3)
SG 3 (SO 3.1)

SG 1 (SO 1.1 &
SO 1.3)

SG 1 (SO 1.2
SG 3 (SO 3.1)

SG 1 (SO 1.6)
SG 2 (SO 2.4)

SG2 (SO 2.2,
SO 2.3, SO 2.4)

SG 4 (SO 4.1)

MO B, OP2,
Ta)

MO A, OP1,
T a)

SG 3 (SO 3.1 &
SO 3.2)

DWA Strategic
Plan

MO A, OP1,
Ta) & c)

Ministerial
Outcomes

Alignment

3. Reliability of
Supply

2. Non-Revenue
Water

1. Water Quality
Compliance

Performance
Objective

Internal audit
findings dealt
with

Improved
performance of
fiduciary duties/
governance

Optimal staff
retention

Unqualified audit
opinion

No unplanned
interruptions
to supply
exceeding 24
hours

Reduced levels
of unaccounted
water (UAW)

Water quality
standards met

Outcomes/
Impact

Internal audit
reports

Annual
performance
assessment

% staff leaving

Annual external
audit opinion

% number of
days supply
disrupted divided
by total number
of possible supply
days

Water lost as a
% of total water
produced

Test results,
SANS 241:2011

Indicators

3 repeats and
unresolved findings

%

%

Qualified/unqualified
opinion

%

%

% compliance

Measure

3 repeats and
unresolved
findings

80%

5%

Unqualified
audit opinion

0.5%

3 repeats and
unresolved
findings

80%

5%

Unqualified
audit opinion

<1%

<5%

Aesthetic –
≥93%

Aesthetic –
≥93%
<5%

Chronic
100%
Health – ≥95%

Chronic Health –
≥95%

2 repeats – no
unresolved
findings

80%

4.64%

Unqualified
audit opinion

0%

1%

100%

100%

Accute Health
– 1 Chem –
≥97%

Accute Health –
1 Chem – ≥97%

Target exceeded.

Target met.

Within target.

Target met.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

100%

Accute Health
– 1 Chem –
≥97%

Accute Health –
1 Micro – ≥97%

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Comments/Corrective Action

100%

100%

Actual
2013/2014

Risk-defined
health – ≥93%

Risk-defined
health – ≥95%

Target
2013/2014

Risk-defined
operational –
≥95%

Risk-defined
operational –
≥96%

Quarter 4

Estimate
2012/2013

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

Mhlathuze Water Corporate
Performance Scorecard

8.3%
37.6 days

R603 million

Total expenditure
(total expenses, cost
of sales and finance
cost)

Debtors days #

R661 million

Total Income (total
revenue, other
income & finance
income)

Return on assets %

2.88

Liquidity – Current
Ratio

100%

Quarter 4

Estimate
2012/13

0.78%

Financial ratios

%

Measure

Debt Equity %

Improved
viability and
sustainability

SG 1 (SO 1.2)
SG 3 (SO 3.1)

Municipalities/
other customers
with bulk supply
agreements

Indicators

4.8%

Statutory and
service level
agreements in
place

SG 1 (SO 1.5)
SG 2 (SO 2.3)
SG 3 (SO 3.2)

DWA Strategic
Plan

Outcomes/
Impact

Gross profit margin
% (Secondary
activity)

MO A, B &D
OP1, Ta), b)
& c). OP2,
Ta)

OP1, Ta), b)
& c). OP2,
Ta)

MO A, B &D

Ministerial
Outcomes

Alignment

88.2%

A n n u a l

Gross profit margin
% (primary activity)

9. Improve
Financial Ratios

8. Bulk Supply
Agreements
Concluded With
Municipalities/
Other Customers

Performance
Objective

37.2 days

6.5%

0.64%

5.3%

48%

R781 million

R829 million

2.13

100%

Target
2013/2014

34.28 days

8.6%

0.59%

8.8%

87.3%

R741 million

R820 million

1.69

100%

Actual
2013/2014

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target met.

Target exceeded –
R35 million more revenue
was received from the
external projects.

Target exceeded.

Within target – Savings mainly
achieved on Energy for an
amount of R22 million due to
Mlathuze Water operating on
an Enerflex tariff option from
the City and a Night save rural
option from Eskom. Savings of
R9 million on chemicals due to
better water quality.

Target not met – This is mainly
due to lower volumes sold
and less revenue received on
TRWP levies income, DWA
took over the billing on the
non-system customers from
October 2013.

Target not met – The ratio
decreased due to the
inclusion of Section 30
activities under current assets
and current liabilities. Cash
balances also decreased due
to funding of capital projects.

Target met.

Comments/Corrective Action
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Mhlathuze Water Corporate Performance Scorecard (continued)
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M h l a t h u z e

Extent of
involvement (as
implementing
agent for
government
departments)
Reporting
compliance
achieved

SG 2 ( SO 1.3)
SG 3 (SO 3.2)

SG 1 (SO 1.2 &
SO 1.6)

MO A, B &D
OP1, Ta), b)
& c). OP2,
Ta)

MO A,D,E
&G

MO A, B &D
OP1, Ta), b)
& c). OP2,
Ta)

MO A,D ,E
&G

MO E

MO E

13. Increase
Access to
Services

W a t e r

•

14. Engagement
in Secondary
Activities

15. Achieve
Statutory
Reporting
Compliance

A m a n z i

16. Jobs
Created

17. Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Initiatives

18. Training
and Skills
Development

SG 1 (SO 1.1
& SO 1.3) SG
2 (2.3)

SG 1 (SO 1.3)
SG 2 (SO 2.1,
2.2 & 2.3)

SG 1(SO 1.1 &
SO 1.3)

SG 3 (SO 3.1)

SG 2 ( SO 2.1)
SG 3 (SO 3.2)
SG 4 (SO 4.2)

Skills and
capacity
building

Good corporate
citizenship

Permanent
and contracted
employed

Contribution
to national
objectives

Infrastructure
available to
meet demands

SG 1 (SO 1.2,
1.3 & SO 1.6)
SG 2 (SO 2.1)

MO A, B &D
OP1, Ta), b)
& c). OP2,
Ta)

12. Capital
Expenditure

Achieve BBBEE
level

SG 2 (SO 2.2) &
(SO 2.3)

MO E

% of spend
increased and
increased new
entrants

11. BBBEE
Rating

SG 1 9SO 1.2)
SG 2 (SO 2.2)

DWA Strategic
Plan

Outcomes/
Impact

MO E

Ministerial
Outcomes

Alignment

10. Increase
BEE Spend

Performance
Objective

Training courses,
learnerships,
bursaries

Number of
initiatives

Total number of
jobs created

Statutory
submissions
made on time

% of total
turnover

No. of new
projects

Overall project
expenditure
within Rand
targets

Rating scorecard

Quarterly reports

Indicators

3

DEA

Total number of
training, leanerships
and bursaries

Number and Rand
value

Internal

External

Number:

Submission dates
met/missed

51

At least 6
initiatives
R1.1million

160

180

Submission
dates met

54%

20

DWS
% of total turnover

4

R23 million

Level 3 or lower

Maintain
above 51% of
discretionary
spend

Quarter 4

Estimate
2012/13

No. of new projects
DOE & DBE

Rand targets

BBBEE rating

% increase

Measure

155

At least 6
initiatives
Total Budget
R1.4 million

176

500

Submission
dates met

56%

3

16

245 (based on
the number of
schools)

R171.4 million

Level 3 or
lower

Maintain
above 51% of
discretionary
spend

Target
2013/2014

118

8 projects
total spent
CSI
R 1 967 520.34

182

673

Q1 – not met
Q2 – met
Q3 – met
Q4 – met

62%

3

16

174

R131.4 million

Achieved
level 2

Achieved
65.8%

Actual
2013/2014

Target not met due to
the training budget being
exhausted.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded mainly
due to projects, training
opportunities and other fixed
term appoinments.

Target exceeded.

Measures have been put in
place to ensure that, going
forward, all submission
deadlines are met.

Target exceeded – More
projects were received on
external projects.

Target met.

Target met.

Target not met due to
delay in getting necessary
approvals from Department
of Basic Education (DBE).

77% of the budget was
spent. 10% savings.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Comments/Corrective Action
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Mhlathuze Water Corporate Performance Scorecard (continued)
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HUMAN RESOURCES
The strategic focus of Human Resources continues
to be the attraction, development and retention
of skilled employees while entrenching a culture
of high performance underpinned by Mhlathuze
Water’s strategic goals.

T

he most significant achievements for the year
are highlighted below:

•

•

less than ninety (90) days. Of the 30 positions

•

•

•

the

Workplace

Skills

Plan

was

development.

W a t e r

learning for a period of approximately one

•

A m a n z i

Continued to achieve a zero (0.00) Disabling
Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR) during the year
under review (0.00 in 2012/2013).

implemented at a cost of R1.3 million. In total

M h l a t h u z e

Hosted 16 students from institutions of higher

the work environment.
•

1349 man-days were spent on training and

30

in 2012/2013) against a projected rate of 5% for

students practical experience and exposure to

to 60% at management level.
of

Maintained a staff turnover rate of 4.65% (4.64%

month. The purpose of the programme is to give

Increased representation of female employees
98%

ensure alignment to similar local industries and

the period under review.

were filled by males.

•

Benchmarked and reviewed salary scales to
to the job market as a whole.

filled, 19 of those were filled by females while 11
•

R353 835 and 68% of this amount was allocated
to female employees.

Recruited high calibre employees to fill thirty (30)

positions within an average turnaround time of

Awarded internal bursaries to the value of

•

Successfully launched the Occupational Health

Clinic in order to promote and maintain the

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

highest degree of physical, mental and social

well-being of employees by preventing and
controlling occupational health related risks.
•

Once again this year Mhlathuze Water received
an Excellence Award for Best Health and Safety
Performance from Federated Employers Mutual

Assurance in December 2013 and was ranked
number two in KwaZulu-Natal in the category of

Small and Medium Enterprises. A certificate of

excellence was awarded together with a cheque
for R105 000.
•

Mhlathuze Water was again voted the Employer

of the Year by the Zululand Chamber of
Commerce and Industry for the second year

running. This award acknowledges businesses

which have made a commitment to employee
skills development, a training culture reaching all

levels of their operations and a formal process
for recognising and rewarding those who commit

Employee Profile

to professional and personal development.
•

Our

Operations

Manager,

Ms

The table below reflects the employee profile as at

Simphiwe

30 June 2014. The total staff complement was 182

Xulu, won the Future Young Black Leader

employees against an approved complement of

Award at the Oliver Empowerment Awards

175. The total complement was above the budgeted

held in Johannesburg in April 2014. She was

complement due to fixed term contract employees who

recognised for her outstanding contribution to

are employed on Project Based contracts.

the organisation’s success and performance

through innovative strategies. Mhlathuze Water

A total of thirty (30) positions were filled, seven (7) of

Organisation and Skills Development categories.

were external appointments.

those were internal promotions while twenty-three (23)

was also the finalist for the Most Transformed

Workforce Profile as at 30 June 2014
Occupational
Levels

MALE

FEMALE

TOTAL

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Top Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior
Management

4

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

5

Professionals

5

0

1

3

9

0

1

1

20

Skilled Technical
& Academically
Qualified Workers

24

0

1

4

31

1

5

3

69

Semi-Skilled

45

1

0

0

14

0

1

3

64

Unskilled &
Defined Decision
Making

15

0

0

0

8

0

1

0

24

TOTALS

93

1

2

7

63

1

8

7

182

A n n u a l

R e p o r t
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Age Breakdown (as at 30th June
2014)

Staff Retention

The age distribution shows that the majority of

for 2013/2014:

employees (66%) remain within the 30-49 age brackets,

Tabled hereunder are the average labour turnover rate

for 2012/2013 and the projected labour turnover rate

Projected
Full Year
2013/2014

Actual
Financial
Year
2013/2014

Previous
Year
2012/2013

Number of Staff

175

182

160

Staff Turnover Rate

5%

4.65%

4.64%

20% fall within the 50-60 brackets while 13% are below
30 years.

Age Profile as at 30 June 2014
80

78

This average annual turnover rate of 4.65% is lower

70

than the projected staff turnover rate of 5% and marks

Number of Employees

60

a continued improvement in our initiatives to create an
enabling work environment for our employees to excel.

50
42

40
30

Employment Equity Profile as at
30 June 2014

34
25

20
10
0

3

<30

30-39

40-49

50-59

Gender Profile

>60

FEMALE

Age Categories

43%

Staff Movements for the period
July 2013 to June 2014
Staff movement for the period 1 July 2013
to 30 June 2014
Total new vacancies filled

10

Total replacement vacancies filled

20

Total appointments

30

Number of internal appointments (promotions)
Number of designated appointments
Number of resignations

6

Number of dismissals

1

Number of ill-health terminations

0

Number of retirements

2

Number of staff deaths

1

WHITE
INDIAN

5%
COLOURED
1%

10

Turnover for the year at 172 average
complement (unplanned separations)

W a t e r

Race Profile

30
0

M h l a t h u z e

MALE

57%

7

Number of non-designated appointments

Total number of withdrawals

32

No.

•

A m a n z i

4.64%

AFRICAN

86%

8%
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This year our recruitment and retention strategies have

continued to focus on employment equity. The number

•

of female employees has shown an increase on the

to female employees, including people with

0.01% of employees who have indicated that they have

disabilities. Further, three bursaries to the value of

a disability, compared to none in the previous years.

R70 000 each were awarded to external students

The complexion of our race profile has changed slightly

from needy communities within Mhlathuze Water’s

with the employment of two (2) Coloured employees

area of supply. One student has completed her

as shown in the pie-chart on page 32. More efforts are

degree in civil engineering and the other two are

being made to improve on these statistics by refining

in their first and third year of studies respectively

our recruitment strategies and tactics.

and are pursuing civil and mechanical engineering

Human Resources Development

Detailed hereunder is the analysis of training and
development during the year under review.
Staff Training

Internal bursaries to the value of R353 835 were
approved; 68% of this amount was awarded

previous year’s 38% to 43% in 2013/2014. There are

•

Internal and External Bursaries

studies at university.
•

Learnerships and Vacation Employment

Sixteen (16) vacation students from local schools

were appointed for a period of approximately one
month in order to furnish them with valuable practical
was

experience which is complementary to their fields

of the planned training was completed at a cost of

disadvantaged children. Five employees and two

spent on training and this marked an improvement

learnership programme on National Certificate

amount of R298 578 was received as a rebate from

level 3). Arrangements are at an advanced stage to

The

2013/2014

Workplace

Skills

Plan

implemented successfully, as approximately 98%

of study. Preference was given to previously

R1.3 million. Approximately 1349 man-days were

unemployed youth were selected to undergo a

on the previous year’s 900 man-days. Further, an

– Water and Waste Water Process Control (NQF

the Energy and Water SETA. This money would

implement an internship programme.

be used for further organisational development
initiatives. Equitable distribution of training was
done in terms of gender, race and disability.

A n n u A l

R e p o R t
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employee relations
Management continue to meet with the recognised

Trade Union on a regular basis, and have continued to
foster a positive employee relations climate. One case

was referred to the CCMA; the employee was dismissed
for gross misconduct. Further, three final written

warnings were issued to employees for misconduct.
Salary negotiations for the 2014/2015 financial year are
still underway but will hopefully be concluded soon.

OHSAS 18001 certification.
Successful audits have been
conducted by the South

African Bureau of Standards
(SABS).
audit

A

was

recertification
conducted

recently and all findings raised have since been cleared,
and Mhlathuze Water is awaiting the awarding of the
OHSAS 18001 certification.

employee Wellness Programme

Our efforts towards employee safety have yielded

Mhlathuze Water continues to look at ways to improve

zero Disabling Injury Frequency Rate. This achievement

the health and well-being of all employees. Various

interventions were co-ordinated to address health

and wellness issues and these included the following
campaigns, among other things: substance and alcohol

abuse awareness, coping with shift work seminar,
breast cancer awareness, stress management, diversity

management and HIV/AIDS management issues.
Twenty referrals for counselling were recorded during
the period under review.

positive results in that we have been able to maintain a
has been affirmed by the Federated Employer Mutual
Assurance by awarding Mhlathuze Water an Excellence
Award for Best Safety Performance.

Furthermore, Mhlathuze Water is currently at an
advanced stage with the implementation of the SANS
16001 Wellness and Diseases Management System.

The stage one audit was conducted by a reputable

certification body in February 2014 and all findings

raised are being addressed. As an integral part of

Health and Safety

the successful implementation of this system, an

Over the years, Mhlathuze Water has demonstrated

opened on our premises to provide employees with

Occupational Health and Wellness Clinic has been

its commitment to employee health and safety by

34

implementing and achieving

M h l a t h u z e

W a t e r

•

A m A n z i

basic primary health care services.
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SCIENTIFIC SERVICES
Ensure Safe Drinking Water

Potable Water Compliance

In order to ensure that our domestic customers are

Mhlathuze Water, from its installation at Nsezi, supplies

Nsezi Water Treatment Plant is tested against SANS

of Empangeni. There is also an emergency connection

supplied with water that is potable, treated water at
241:2011 standards for drinking water. Water samples
are taken and analysed regularly at Mhlathuze Water’s

ISO 17025 accredited Analytical Testing Facility based
at the Head Office Complex in Richards Bay. In line

with the requirements of the revised standard, a risk
assessment is done on the entire system i.e. source

to consumer to identify and mitigate risks that could

into the Richards Bay system. Treated water at Nsezi

Water Treatment Works continues to be of the highest
quality, and in line with the new SANS 241:2011.

Compliance for the final treated water is tabled below.

Tier 1: Compliance with SANS 241: 2011
Parameters (July 2013 to June 2014)

potentially impact the quality of water supplied. The

Risk Category

Compliance
(%)

Water
Quality

Safety Plan for the Nsezi system. A risk assessment

Acute Health 1:
Microbiological

100

Excellent

that the monitoring is structured such that it takes into

Acute Health 1:
Chemical

100

Excellent

monitoring exceeds some of the requirements so as to

Chronic Health

100

Excellent

Aesthetic

100

Excellent

obligations with certain industrial consumers.

Operational

100

Excellent

results of this risk assessment form part of the Water
of the monitoring programme is also done to ensure
account the inherent risks in the system. The current

cater for other operational requirements and contractual

36

potable water to the uMhlathuze Municipality in the town

M h l a t h u z e

W a t e r

•

A m a n z i
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Tier 2: Risk associated with Acute Health 2
Parameters (July 2013 to June 2014)
Determinant

Mhlathuze Water has put together a system to impose

financial penalties on non-conforming contributors. It
is anticipated that this system will result in improved

Total No. of
Tests

Total Number
Complying

Cytopathogenic

1

100%

2014/2015 period.

Cryptospiridium

1

100%

Giardia

1

100%

Environmental Management
System (EMS)

Effluent Compliance
Mhlathuze Water owns and operates the biggest

offshore waste water disposal system in South Africa.
Two pipelines (buoyant A-Line and dense B/C-Line)
extending four and five kilometres out to sea discharge

industrial waste water from the big industries in

compliance. The system will be implemented in the

Mhlathuze Water’s EMS has been ISO 14001 certified since

February 2006. This certification is a voluntary process which

involves an external certification body performing audits
to confirm compliance to an international standard. This
strategic initiative indicates the organisation’s commitment

to comply with environmental legislation and to conduct its
operations in an environmentally friendly manner.

Richards Bay and surrounding areas, sludge from Nsezi

The last surveillance assessment audit was in November

the uMhlathuze Municipality. The organisation has a

October 2014. This certificate will be valid for three

Water Treatment Plant and macerated sewage from

2013 and the next re-assessment will be conducted in

license (issued by Department of Water and Sanitation

years up to 2018.

Section 21(h) of the National Water Act, 36 of 1998.

Quality Management Systems

[DWS]) to dispose industrial wastewater in terms of
In line with the license, samples are taken daily from
the contributors and also from the combined effluent
at the pump station before it is mixed with seawater

and pumped into the sea. Overall compliance for the

A-Line (discharging the buoyant effluent) was 92%.

B-Line’s (discharging the dense gypsum from Foskor)
compliance was 66%.

The current disposal license was issued by the
Department of Water and Sanitation in terms of
chapter 4 of the National Water Act of 1998. With the
promulgation of the Integrated Coastal Management

Act of 2008, Mhlathuze Water needs to submit an
application to the Department of Environmental Affairs
for the coastal discharge permit. This process was

started in the 2013/2014 period and will be finalised
sometime in the 2014/2015 period.

Mhlathuze Water has been ISO 9001 certified since

February 2011. The first re-assessment audit was

done in December 2013 by SABS to check continual
improvement. In this audit only nine non-conformances

were raised. The current certificate is valid for three
years up to 2017.

The Scientific Services Laboratory has been ISO

17025:2005 accredited since May 2002. The last

surveillance audit was done in April 2014 by SANAS to
check continual compliance to the requirements of the

standard. Eighteen non-conformances were raised and

these have been cleared. The current certificate is valid
for five years up to 2017.

Blue Drop Certification
Mhlathuze Water has participated in Blue Drop System

Effluent Pipeline Forum meetings are held quarterly

(BDS) assessments since 2010. In the 2011/2012

issues relating to the pipelines. Representatives

with a final score of 98.39%. A minimum score of 95%

Department of Environmental Affairs, media and other

assessments are conducted every two years. Due to

who have been appointed to perform a bi-annual bio-

the final results have not been released at the time of

to discuss compliance and other relevant operational

assessment the system received Blue Drop Certification

from companies discharging into the pipelines, the

is required to achieve Blue Drop Certification and formal

stakeholders also attend the meetings. The CSIR,

the delay in finalising the assessment for 2012/2013,

monitoring survey (as required by the license), present

reporting.

results of the studies conducted.

A n n u a l
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Blue Drop scores are determined based on assessments

Act. The organisation has been an active participant in

on five key areas. These are: water safety planning,

the uSuthu to Mhlathuze Water Management Area.

conducted by a panel of drinking water professionals

drinking water quality process management and
control, drinking water quality compliance, management
accountability

and

local

regulation,

and

asset

management. Compliance in all these areas ensures
that not only is drinking water quality compliance taken

into account as was traditionally the case, but that the
overall management of the drinking water supply chain

and control of risks to water quality are also considered.

The National Microbial
Monitoring Programme (NMMP)
Mhlathuze Water has been implementing the National

Microbial Monitoring Programme (NMMP) on behalf
of DWS-RQS since 2006. The programme is aimed at
providing information on the status, trends and extent of

pollution in terms of microbial surface water resources

in priority areas and also information that helps to
assess the potential health risk to humans associated

with possible use of faecal polluted water resources.
The organisation has been the Regional Coordinator
and Implementing Agent of the programme for the past

six years and had signed another two-year contract
which was due to expire in February 2014, however

due to funding constraints the project was terminated

in January 2014. Mhlathuze Water has since provided
a new proposal at the request of the Department to
implement the project for a further two-year period.

Catchment Management Forums
(CMF)
Mhlathuze Water participates in the Catchment

Management Forums established by the Department of
Water and Sanitation as mandated by the National Water

the Mhlathuze CMF, which is one of the five forums in

Working For Water Programme
Mhlathuze Water has been implementing the Working

for Water Programme for the Department of Water and
Sanitation (DWS) since 2003.

The programme has since moved to the Department
of

Environmental

Affairs

(DEA)

with

the

same

mandate. This is an Expanded Public Works Extended

Programme aimed at alleviating poverty through job
creation for rural communities while assisting them in
terms of skills development. It aims to conserve water
resources through the removal of alien invasive plants.
Approximately 600 people have benefited from this

project, including: 60% women, 38% youth, and 2%
people with disabilities. A number of projects were
implemented in Mfule River, Goedetrouw Dam and

Mhlathuze River (Waterweeds). A total area of about

5 429.72 hectares was cleared during the financial year
2013/2014 and this amounted to about 95% of the

expected target, using more than 33 391.53 person
days.

The contract expired in March 2014 and a new threeyear contract is being finalised.

Awareness and Education
Mhlathuze Water, through the Water Resources
Management Unit, embarked on awareness and

education campaigns on water conservation. This
was done as part of a forum consisting of different
stakeholders (government, private sector and NGOs)

within the uThungulu District Municipality and uses
a calendar of special days throughout the year. The

table below outlines activities undertaken during the
reporting period.
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Event

Date

Activities

Weed Buster Week

November 2013

Mhlathuze Water and WFW officials visited the Mfule project and spent
time with the workers and community benefitting from the project.
Presentations were done to create awareness amongst the communities
about the dangers of alien invasive plants.

Water Week

March 2014

Mhlathuze Water participated in the Water Week Commemoration
organised in Melmoth by the uThungulu Forum on 20 March 2014.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Thukela Transfer Scheme

of the new 10Ml water treatment plant. The new pumps

scheme on behalf of the Department of Water

Mhlathuze Transfer Scheme

Mhlathuze Water operates and maintains this transfer
and Sanitation (DWS). The scheme comprises an

abstraction point at Middeldrift on the Thukela River
pumping water into the Mvuzana stream, which joins
the Mhlathuze River upstream of the Goedetrouw Dam.

The scheme was initially constructed as an emergency
augmentation scheme for the Mhlathuze System, but is
now used for general augmentation of the system.

The overall operation of the scheme was acceptable
during the period under review. This entails the operation

of the community pumps supplying raw water to the
uThungulu Water Treatment Plant and the regular test
running of the emergency transfer pumps.
uThungulu

District

Municipality

upgraded

the

pumps driven by 315kW motors to meet the capacity
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This scheme is used to pump water directly to Nsezi

Water Treatment Plant and also augments Lake Nsezi

when necessary. Raw water is also pumped to Tronox
Hillendale mine near Esikhaleni. There is also an
emergency supply link to Lake Cubhu at the Esikhaleni
Water Works.

A total of 45 962 988m3 of raw water was pumped from

the scheme during the 2013/2014 period.

Nsezi Water Treatment Plant

A total of 41 404 158 m3 of raw water was abstracted
to supply Nsezi Water Treatment Plant, 40 627 687m3

community pumping system with two multistage KSB

40

have a capacity of 72 l/s.

from Mhlathuze River and 776 471m3 from Nsezi Lake.

The treatment plant’s production water losses were

1%, which is well within the <5% target. The water

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

losses were low because of the process waste water
recovery system which was commissioned earlier
during the financial year.

Total Purified Water Supply
Historically, water supply or demand at Nsezi Water

Treatment Plant increases during the winter months.
During winter the water levels in the lakes used by

the Local Municipality drop significantly, forcing

the Municipality to use treated water from Nsezi to
augment their supply.

Chemical usage in the purification process was lower

due to lower raw water turbidities and the successful
use of the dosing matrix which ensures efficient
dosing of purification chemicals.

The profile below indicates the monthly purified water
quantities supplied to the consumers.

Total Purified Water Volumes
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Offshore Effluent Disposal Scheme
The scheme comprises of two pipelines, the A-Line,
which collects buoyant effluent from the uMhlathuze

The

dredging

operation

was

still

being

conducted at the end of the reporting period.

Municipality and industry, and the C-Line, which collects

Maintenance, Plant Efficiency and
Availability

was replaced by the C-Line, is still operational but only

Plant availability for the period under review was 99.5%

dense gypsum effluent from Foskor. The B-Line, which
used as a backup. The contents of both pipelines are
of a corrosive nature, hence critical spares for both of

these systems must always be available for repairs.

During the period under review the effluent scheme
operated under close monitoring to prevent any

downtime. No major breakdowns were experienced

except for a gypsum pipe burst in December 2013 in
the area between Foskor and the Pump Station.

Intensive maintenance was conducted on the offshore

section of the A-Line. The following activities were
performed:
•

Pipeline inspections – checking for the condition
of the overall pipeline including flanges, bolts,
over-clamps, saddles and anodes.

•

Pipeline survey – full annual pipeline survey

from the onshore to offshore including the
survey over sea sand build up over pipeline.

(target >90%). The experienced downtime was a result
of minor breakdowns which only rendered parts of the

various plants unavailable without affecting the total

availability of the plants. Only one breakdown, which
lasted 28 hours, caused an interruption to one customer

(Foskor). The shutdown process was procedurally
communicated with the customer as per the existing
contractual agreement.

A preventative predictive maintenance strategy is

applied to Mhlathuze Water plant equipment when
conducting maintenance activities. The results of
maintenance performance measures obtained when
applying this strategy are stipulated below:
Average Annual Performance

Actual

Target

Planned maintenance activities

97.1%

95%

Unplanned maintenance activities

2.81%

5%

No major defects were identified on the pipeline except

To address and eliminate future effects of prolonged power

being replaced at the end of the 2013/2014 financial year.

for customers, the organisation is implementing a project

for the depleted anodes which were still in the process of

Minimal maintenance was conducted on the B-Line.
The following activities were conducted:

supply outages or failures resulting in production losses

to provide an 11kV emergency backup power supply

from Mondi. The Project is about 95% complete with
commissioning planned for 10 July 2014.

•

Bathymetric survey to quantify the gypsum
build-up over the diffuser section.

Planning

•

An annual pipeline survey from the onshore to

Regional Bulk Master Plans

offshore including the survey over sea sand
build-up over pipeline.

•

An inspection of the gypsum build-up over the

non-operational part of the line indicated that
the gypsum in dissolving.

The C-Line Pump Station has three pumps, with two in
operation and one on standby. The following activities
were conducted on the line:
•

Bathymetric survey to quantify the gypsum

•

A full annual pipeline survey from the onshore

build-up over the diffuser section.

to offshore including the survey over sea sand
build-up over pipeline.
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The future planning in the region is ongoing with
Mhlathuze Water engaging with all Water Service
Authorities in the region to ensure that new projects
are identified. Possible funding mechanisms for some
of the major schemes have been identified with the
aim of growing and expanding Mhlathuze Water’s
consumer base and providing high quality services to
the community and industry.
Mhlathuze Water has recently signed a new
implementing agent’s agreement with uMkhanyakude
District Municipality. The agreement entails the
implementation of Bulk Water Infrastructure for new
projects and the completion of existing projects.

The Department of Water & Sanitation (DWS) is currently
conducting a Reconciliation Study for Richards Bay and

surrounding towns. The study acknowledges that the

current water resources available within Mhlathuze River
catchment are sufficient to cater for the existing water

requirements. However, the main objective of the study is
to develop a strategy to ensure adequate and sustainable
reconciliation

of

future

water

requirements

within

Mhlathuze catchment with potential supply up to 2040.
The recommendations from the Reconciliation Study
will determine whether any augmentation or expansions

are required for the Mhlathuze catchment schemes. The
study is expected to be completed by 2015.

Projects under Feasibility Stage

Access Road to Nsezi Water Treatment Works

The project involves construction of an alternative

surfaced route to Nsezi Water Treatment Plant. Access
to the plant for both staff and contractors is currently
possible from the Western Arterial (Alton) via a gravel

road. The gravel road section is generally always in poor
condition and particularly bad during the rainy season.

Three alternative routes were identified, with the proposed
feasible route traversing through City of uMhlathuze

property and also crossing the railway line. The servitude

application has been submitted to the Municipality and a
response is awaited.

Review of Empangeni Bulk Supply Scheme

Mhlathuze Water supplies bulk water to Empangeni

20Ml Reservoir at Nsezi Water Treatment Works

town and surroundings via a bulk scheme which

20Ml on-site storage for potable water to ensure

Pearce and Hillview reservoirs.

The project involves the construction of an additional

comprises a High Lift Pumpstation and a rising main to

uninterrupted supply to Mhlathuze Water’s customers.

The project involves the review of the scheme from a

The new reservoir will be located within the fenced area
of Nsezi Water Treatment Plant. It is currently at the

preliminary design stage and construction is scheduled

to commence towards end of the 2014/2015 financial
year.

hydraulic perspective, which includes evaluation of

the suction manifold and pipeline, pumps and motors,
delivery manifold and all rising mains. Furthermore,
operational methodologies and pressure/flow controls

will also be evaluated. The project is currently at the
preliminary design stage.

A n n u a l
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Review of the Dense Effluent System – B and C-Line

Pumping Scheme
The project involves the evaluation and design of
infrastructure units including the suction system,
control and monitoring equipment. The project is as
a result of the progressive deterioration of mechanical
components associated with pumps, suspected to be
resulting from cavitation.

Engineering Projects at
Implementation Stage
Mondi Pump Station
During the 2012/2013 financial year a feasibility study

was completed on the upgrade of the pumps supplying
Mondi. The study indicated that the capacity of the

pumps was no longer sufficient, and a decision was

The objective of the project is to investigate possible

taken to replace these. New pumps were procured

any modification and/or refurbishment required to

during the Mondi shutdown planned for March 2015.

causes of cavitation in the system and further assess

improve the operation and maintenance methodologies.
Augmentation of Nsezi Water Treatment Plant

During 2010/2011 Mhlathuze Water undertook an
operational efficiency study to:
•

•

during the period under review and will be installed

Supervisory Control and Data System (SCADA)
Mhlathuze Water embarked on a project to implement

a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system
(SCADA). Due to the complexity of this project the

Determine ways and means of increasing

organisation needed to source new skills, leading to the

maintenance efficiencies.

section,

capacity through improved operational and
Identify bottlenecks within the system with
a view to increasing the capacity in line with
current demand projections.

Incorporating the findings of the Efficiency Study,
Mhlathuze Water appointed a service provider in
December 2013 to further look at the augmentation of

Nsezi Water Treatment Plant and develop a Decision

Matrix to align phased augmentation options with
alternative growth projections. The study is currently

underway and future upgrades are expected to
commence in 2018/2019.

creation of the new positions within the maintenance

2 739.7

1 000 000 Raw Water

66

24 090 Raw Water

2. SANRAL – N2 Upgrade
(Mthunzini Toll plaza to
Empangeni T-junction)
3. Zulti South Mine –
Richards Bay Minerals

40 000 14 600 000 Raw Water

4. Tronox – Fair Breeze Mine

31 460 11 482 900 Raw Water

5. Pulp United / Ferrostaal
6. City of uMhlathuze –
Esikhaleni
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5 000
25 000

1 825 000 Clarified
Water
9 125 000 Raw Water

7. Nyaza Light Metals –
Water

140 000 tons per
annum

Clarified
Water

Nyaza Light Metals –
Effluent (brine)

430 000 tons per
annum

N/A

Nyaza Light Metals –
Effluent (chloride)

1 300 tons per annum

N/A
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and

during implementation in order to give time to assess the
deliverables of the initial phase before the organisation
commits to further development of the system. Phase

1 was implemented in 2013/2014 and its scope of work
was mainly to identify easy wins, including installation

of the new field instruments and the connection of all
SCADA compatible electrical panels to the system.
The following milestones were achieved for Phase 1:

The C-Line Pump Station’s PLC System, which
is fully compatible with the SCADA system,

was interfaced for supervisory control for the

Volumes Volumes Water Type
(M³/d) (M³/annum)

1. Tongaat Hullet

Technician

A decision was taken to adopt a phased approach

Pending water/effluent applications to date are as follows:
Customer

Instrumentation

the 2013/2014 financial year.

1.

Water Applications Received

namely

Instrumentation Mechanician. Both were filled during

Operators in the control room. Some readings
that the Operators were obtaining manually from
2.

3.

the plant are now being read from the system.

The upgrade of the A-Line electrical panel
to a SCADA compatible panel for effective
interfacing of A-Line system into SCADA.

The interfacing of the newly upgraded Lake Nsezi
intake Pump Station into the SCADA system with
full supervisory and control functions.

Phase 1 is currently at final commissioning stages and
the system is expected to be fully functional and in full

use by operators in the plants by end of November 2014.
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Nsezi Intake
Subsequent to the upgrade of the Nsezi Water Treatment
Plant there was an urgent need to upgrade the intake

Pump Station at Lake Nsezi due to its poor performance
and pumping capacity of the then four existing pumps.

The new intake, which has three pumps, is designed to
meet pump capacity of 204Ml/day. The Pump Station is

used as a back-up in the event there is a problem at the
Mhlathuze Weir, which is the main raw water abstraction

point for the plant. The upgrade also included the

replacement of the manifold from the existing 1200mm
diameter steel pipe to a 1500mm diameter steel pipe,
replacement of the 1200mm diameter steel pipe to the
inlet tower, and all other pump electricals. The project
has been completed.

City of uMhlathuze – New Pump Station
Due to the increasing water requirements from the
City of uMhlathuze a new High Lift Pump Station with

a pumping capacity of 20Ml/day is being constructed.

This will augment the existing 40Ml/day emergency

Pump Station which currently supplies Richards Bay.
During the year under review a contractor was appointed
and work done to date includes the excavations and
construction of substructure walls.

Hlabisa Bulk Water Supply
Mhlathuze Water was appointed as an Implementing
Agent for this project by uMkhanyakude District

Municipality. It is funded by the Department of Water

and Sanitation (DWS). The project, which started in
2008, has four phases and it entails the construction

of bulk water pipelines, reservoirs and pump stations in

equitable distribution of water to all the users, including
the communities of Dukuduku, Khula, and eZwenelisha.

This project started in 2011 and the targeted date for
completion is March 2015. A total of R143 million was

approved by the Department of Water and Sanitation
(DWS) for the project.

Over R113 million has been spent to date and the
following has been completed:
•

Khula Village Reticulation uPVC and HDPe

The total amount approved for the project to date is

•

Dukuduku Reticulation of uPVC and HDPe

2008. Progress on the project includes:

•

Dukuduku Reservoir comprises of a 5Ml

the Hlabisa area.

R208 million. Over R175 million has been spent since

pipes with a total length of 37 140m.
pipes with a total length of 86 560m.

•

101km of 106.12km pipes installed.

concrete reservoir that will provide storage

•

40 of 42 reservoir chambers completed.

iSimangaliso World Heritage Site.

•
•
•

for the Dukuduku villages, St Lucia and

14 of 14 reservoirs completed.

160 of 197 air valve chambers completed.
40 of 42 control chambers completed.

Dukuduku Water Supply Project
The objective of this project is to provide solutions to the
water supply challenges of Mtubatuba and surrounding

•

Dukuduku-Khula Distribution 600mm diameter

steel pipeline will convey water from the
Dukuduku Reservoir to Khula and Dukuduku

villages, is a 5km long with associated air and
scour valves.

areas. The project will also ensure that there is an
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Jozini/Ingwavuma Bulk Water Supply

Infrastructure Development Initiative (ASIDI) to implement

The objective of this project is to supply purified bulk

water and sanitation infrastructure and fencing of tank

Ingwavuma towns. The project covers the construction

the project was R51 million.

and a pipeline. It is funded by the Departments of

Health and Hygiene Education

(reticulation) and Water and Sanitation (bulk). Phase 1 of

schools where Water and Sanitation projects are

Phase 2, which started in October 2013, is expected to

sanitation improvements, there must an understanding

water to the rural communities between Jozini and

of pump stations, reservoirs, a water treatment plant
Affairs

Health and Hygiene Education is conducted in

the project started in 2010 and was completed in 2011.

being implemented. For communities to benefit from

be completed by November 2016.

of the link between health, good hygiene and toilet

Cooperative

Governance

and

Traditional

The construction of the Regional Water Treatment Plant,

which is part of Phase 2, commenced in March 2014
and is due for completion in March 2015. It will have a

capacity of 40Ml/day and will provide water as far as
Mbazwana. Six (6) out of the twelve (12) reservoirs have

been completed and three more reservoirs are under
construction.

Schools Ablution Facilities Project
Mhlathuze Water was appointed by the Department

of Basic Education under the Accelerated Schools

46

stands at 71 schools in KwaZulu-Natal. The budget for
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facilities.

The aim is to increase knowledge about issues related
to personal habits and practices that affects health. This

is done to break the cycle of communicable diseases

and ensure sustainable sanitation structures. During
the year 2013/2014, health and hygiene education was
conducted at 174 schools.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
1. Introduction

2. Operating Performance

The financial overview is an analysis of the financial
results and financial position of Mhlathuze Water for the
year under review and must be read in conjunction with
the annual financial statements.

The positive financial performance in the current
financial year is as a result of higher revenue generated
and operational efficiencies.
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2.1. Year on Year Analysis of Operating
Performance
Mhlathuze Water has maintained strong operating
surpluses. Overall the profit for the year of R79.1 million
reflects an increase of 16% from the previous year.

20 YEARS OF FREEDOM AND WORLD-CLASS WATER SERVICE DELIVERY

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

%

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

change

115 246

123 183

118 375

108 927

112 340

3%

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Revenue

214 547

265 021

297 518

314 971

346 047

10%

Bulk water

131 985

168 765

191 113

193 304

208 228

8%

79 211

88 716

95 077

102 107

110 030

8%

3 351

7 540

11 328

19 560

27 789

42%

Cost of Sales

(34 468)

(45 495)

(43 443)

(37 999)

(38 466)

1%

Gross Profit

180 079

219 526

254 075

276 972

307 581

11%

84%

83%

85%

88%

89%

8 475

4 930

11 502

15 450

3 526

(77%)

(171 684)

(160 240)

(198 428)

(213 171)

(225 873)

6%

16 870

64 216

67 149

79 251

85 234

8%

4 290

2 845

(15 219)

(11 181)

(6 036)

(46%)

21 160

67 061

51 930

68 070

79 198

16%

Volume sold

Waste water
Section 30 activities - implementing agent fees

GP%
Other operating income
Other operating and administration expenses
Results from operating activities
Net finance income (costs)
Surplus for the year

2.2. Volume Sold
2.2.1. Bulk Water
The increase in bulk water volumes of 8% is mainly due to the increase in raw water volumes due to Tronox and
Richards Bay Minerals abstracting more raw water compared to the prior year.

Bulk water volumes – by customer and % increase (decrease)
Customer

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

%

13 227

13 512

9 312

4 264

7 380

73%

Richards Bay Minerals

8 805

8 728

4 570

1 406

2 394

70%

Tronox Hillendale

4 422

4 351

4 742

2 858

4 453

56%

-

433

-

-

534

100%

Purified water

37 269

44 919

43 980

39 912

40 208

1%

Mondi Kraft R/Bay

25 080

24 082

26 515

23 957

23 703

-1%

CoU – Foskor

4 029

6 173

4 951

3 823

4 810

26%

CoU – Empangeni

7 949

7 905

8 378

9 508

9 243

-3%

211

6 759

4 136

2 624

2 452

-7%

50 496

58 431

53 292

44 176

47 588

8%

R e p o r t
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Raw water

CoU – Esikhaweni

CoU – Richards Bay
Total bulk water volume sales
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Bulk Water Volume Sold (kilolitre)
50 000
40 000
30 000
20 000
10 000
0

Raw Water
Purified Water

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

13 227
37 269

13 512
44 919

9 312
43 980

4 263
39 912

7 380
40 208

2.2.2. Waste Water
Waste water volumes remained constant for the past five years and is based on contracted demands.
Bulk waste water volumes - by customer and % increase (decrease)
Customer

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

Buoyant waste water

53 802

53 802

53 802

53 802

53 802

BHP Billiton – Bayside

548

548

548

548

548

BHP Billiton – Hillside

548

548

548

548

548

40 150

40 150

40 150

40 150

40 150

876

876

876

876

876

2 920

2 920

2 920

2 920

2 920

730

730

730

730

730

7 300

7 300

7 300

7 300

7 300

730

730

730

730

730

Dense waste water

10 950

10 950

10 950

10 950

10 950

Foskor

10 950

10 950

10 950

10 950

10 950

Total waste water volume sales

64 752

64 752

64 752

64 752

64 752

Mondi Kraft R/Bay
Tronox
Mondi Felixton
Foskor
CoU – Richards Bay
Nsezi WTP

2.3. Tariffs
2.3.1. Raw Water Tariffs
The percentage increase in tariffs for raw water was 9.1% in the prior year and for the current year it is 8.4%.
The graph on raw tariffs shows a downward trend for the past five years.

Raw Water – Tariff Increases
20%
18%
16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
Tariff increases
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2009/2010

2010/2011

2011/2012

18%

11%

14%
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2012/2013
9.1%

2013/2014
8.4%
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2.3.2. Purified Water Tariffs
The percentage increase in tariffs for purified water was 9.4% in the prior year and for the current year it is 8.6%.
The graph on purified tariffs shows a downward trend for the past five years.

24%
22%
20%
18%
16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
Tariff increases

Purified Water – Tariff Increases

2009/2010
14%

2010/2011

2011/2012

2012/2013

2013/2014

22%

14%

9.4%

8.6%

2.3.3. Buoyant Waste Water Tariffs
The percentage increase in tariffs for buoyant waste water was 9.1% in the prior year and for the current year it is
8.6%. The graph on buoyant wast water tariffs shows a downward trend for the past five years.

15%
14%
13%
12%
11%
10%
9%
8%
7%
6%
Tariff increases

Buoyant Waste Water – Tariff Increases

2009/2010
10%

2010/2011
10%

2011/2012
10%

2012/2013

2013/2014

9.1%

8.6%

2.3.4. Dense Waste Water Tariffs
The percentage increase in tariffs for dense waste water was 9.73% in the prior year and for the current year it is 8.6%.
The graph on dense waste water tariff shows a downward trend for the past five years.

Dense Waste Water – Tariff Increases
15%
14%
13%
12%
11%
10%
9%
8%
7%
6%
Tariff increases

2009/2010

2010/2011

2011/2012

14%

10.2%

10%

2012/2013

2013/2014

9.73%
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2.4. Revenue

2.4.1. Primary Activities

Revenue increased by 10% mainly due to the 42%

increase in other activities as reflected in the table on
page 49.

Bulk Water
The bulk water segment forms 60% (2013: 61%) of
total revenue. The volumes for bulk water increased this

financial year due to the increase in raw water volumes.

Revenue per Business Segment Information

Revenue Segment as at 30 June 2014 (%)

Revenue per Business Segment (R’000)

Waste Water
346 047

Other Activities Section 30

8%is 32% (2013: 33%) of total revenue.
Waste water
Remained constant.

314 971
297 518

Waste Water

32%

265 021

Bulk Water

2.4.2 Other Activies (Section 30) 60%

Contribution to total revenue increased from 6% last

214 547

year to 8% in current year. Secondary activities in terms

of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997 include any

Revenue provided
Segment as
30 June
2013 (%)
services
byatWater
Boards
other than primary
Other Activities Section 30
activities.

6%
2.5. Main Cost Drivers
2.5.1. Cost of Sales

Bulk Water

61%

Waste Water

Cost of sales increased slightly by 1% from the prior

33%

2010

2011

2012

Bulk Water

2013

Waste Water

2014

year.

Cost of Sales (R’000)

Other Activities

45 495

Revenue Segment as at 30 June 2014 (%)

00)

43 443
37 999

38 466

34 468

84%

Other Activities Section 30

346 047

8%

Waste Water

32%

Bulk Water

60%

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2.5.2. Gross Profit
Revenue Segment as at 30 June 2013 (%)

Gross profit increased from 88% to 89%.

Other
Activities
Section 30
Cost
of Sales
(R’000)
45 495

Gross Profit %

6% 43 443

37 999

88%
38 466

Bulk Water

34 468

61%

Waste Water

33%

84%

83%

2010

2011

89%

85%

2014
Other Activities

2010
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2.5.3. Operating, General and Administrative Expenses
Staff costs increased by 20% from the previous year, mainly due to the vacancies that have been filled for the
current year. The staff complement at end of June 2014 was 182 (2013: 160) (Refer to note 3 of the annual financial
statements).

Energy costs only increased by 3% mainly due to savings. Mhlathuze Water are operating on an Enerflex tariff option

from the City for the Nsezi WTP, and for the Transfer Scheme the Night Save Rural option from Eskom, where the
charges are for three months’ high season and nine months’ low season.

Staff Cost (R’000)

Energy (R’000)
78 685

38 787

37 495
65 587

49 753

2010

49 989

2011

31 136
30 267

53 002

2012

40 012

2013

2014

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Maintenance costs decreased by 8% from the prior year. In the prior year a once-off adhoc maintenance on plant
breakdowns was done. For the current year Mhlathuze Water had implemented preventative maintenance, which

improved on the breakdowns experienced in the prior year. For the current year the emphasis was mainly on the

recovery of the offshore pipeline on the A and C-Line and due to the unfavourable weather conditions the work could
not be completed by the end of June 2014 and will be carried forward to the 2014/2015 year.

Chemicals costs decreased by 17% mainly due to minimum chemicals being used because of lower raw water
turbidity from the Mhlathuze River, and purification process optimisation initiatives to reduce purification costs/
chemical dosages.

Maintenance (R’000)

Chemicals (R’000)
13 755

21 270
10 089
16 042

10 386

14 836

8 423

8 534

7 995
5 298

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2010

2011

2012
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Depreciation only increased by 1% against the previous year.
Other operating expenses remained constant for the year.

Depreciation (R’000)
44 310

44 579

44 976

Other Operating Expenses (R’000)
52 818
38 941

30 036
38 087
31 965

25 014
27 326

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2.5.4. Finance Costs
Net finance costs decreased by 46% due to lower
debt levels.

Working Ratio
Net Finance Cost/Income (R’000)

0.84
0.66

15 219

0.66

0.66

0.63

11 181

1.07
6 036

2010
-4 290

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

-2 845

2011

2012 Ratio 2013
Working

Current Ratio

2014

2.32

0.84

2.21

1.88

2.6. Operating Indicators

1.84

0.66
Working ratio: Annual
expenses
0.66 excluding
0.66depreciation/
0.63

annual revenue). The working ratio measures efficiency.
The ratio of 0.63 (2013: 0.66) indicates Mhlathuze

Water’s ability to recover operating costs from annual
revenue.

1.07

Current ratio: The current ratio measures liquidity. The

current ratio decreased to 1.84 (2013: 2.21), mainly due

to the increase of work on the section 30 activies, the
balances of which are included in current assets and
current2010
liabilities. 2011
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Interest coverage ratio: (EBIT/interest expense) The interest cover ratio measures long-term solvency. The current
ratio increased to 4.62 (2013: 3.29) and determines how easily Mhlathuze Water can pay interest on outstanding debt.
Debt equity ratio: (Total debt liabilities/total reserves) The debt equity ratio measures long-term solvency. As at 30
June 2014, a debt equity ratio of 0.59 (2013: 0.77) was achieved primarily as a result of the decrease in long-term debt.

Interest Coverage Ratio

Debt Equity Ratio

11.11
1.23

1.31

1.00

0.77
0.59

4.62
3.29
2.48
1.34

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Return on assets ratio: (Net income/total assets) The return on assets (ROA) ratio measures profitability. The return

on assets ratio decreased to 8.65% (2013: 8.84%). The ROA shows how efficient management is at using Mhlathuze
Water’s assets to generate earnings.

Asset turnover ratio: (Revenue/total assets) The asset turnover ratio measures profitability. The ratio stayed constant
at 0.35 (2013: 0.35).

Return on Assets Ratio
8.32%

8.84%

Asset Turnover Ratio
8.65%

7.76%

0.37
0.33

0.35

0.35

2012

2013

2014

A n n u a l

R e p o r t

0.32

2.57%

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2010

2011
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2.7. Cash Flow Analysis

2.7.3. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Total interest bearing borrowings have decreased by

2.7.1. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
The net cash generated from operating activities

4% mainly due to loan repayments.

decreased by 23%. Mhlathuze Water continues to

Loan Repayments (R’000)

maintain strong operating cash flows, which has

44 178

allowed for the repayment of debt and funding of capital

expenditure. The graph below illustrates the growth in
cash flows from operations for the past five years.

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (R’000)

33 338
30 394

119 065

22 110

21 085

92 161

79 463
59 858

2010

20 311

2011

2012

2013

2014

2.7.4. Cash Balances
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Sufficient short-term investments are held to fund
capital commitments that are set out in note 18 of the
annual financial statements.

2.7.2. Cash Flows used in Investing Activities
Net cash out flow from investing activities increased 437%

Cash Balances (R’000)

from the prior year due to the acquisition of assets. The

308 001

three major projects that contributed to the increase are:
•

Upgrade of intake pump station and band

•

City of uMhlathuze pump upgrade – R25 million

•

258 755

screens – R35 million

Re-route B-line to C-line – R12.3 million

224 444

240 241

2011

2012

141 071

Capital Expenditure (R’000)
177 617

104 490

128 552

2010

2013

2014

35 401

2.7.5. Funding Requirements
The Business Plan for 2015 shows that the requirement

19 119

for new funding is not needed for the next financial year
2010
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2.7.6. Borrowing Limits
The borrowing limits for the period 2013 to 2015 have
been approved by National Treasury in concurrence

with the Minister of Water and Sanitation and published
in the Government Gazette as follows:
•

2013: R232.8 million

•

2015: R239.1 million

•

2014: R208.5 million

The borrowing limit is based on Mhlathuze Water’s
borrowing requirements and the funding needed to
ensure that the demands from consumers can be met.

Limits are reviewed on a timeous basis, and where

there are indicators for limit changes, alterations are
undertaken with National Treasury accordingly.
Borrowing limits utilised:
Borrowing limits

2013

2014

Limit

R232.8 million

R208.5 million

Actual

R211.7 million

R190.5 million

R21.1 million

R18 million

Unutilised

Based on the new business plan that was submitted to
the Department of Water and Sanitation and National

Treasury, Mhlathuze Water’s borrowings for 2015 will be
sufficient to cover all liquidity requirements.
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Director’s Report
The Board of Mhlathuze Water has pleasure in
presenting their report of the entity for the year
ended 30 June 2014.
The report is presented in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act No. 1 of 1999, and designates the
Board as the accounting authority.

Nature of Business
Mhlathuze Water conducts its activities in accordance

with sections 29 and 30 of the Water Services Act No.
108 of 1997.

58

government for projects related to water service delivery.

Compliance with Legislation
The annual financial statements are prepared in

accordance with South African Generally Accepted
Accounting Standards (SA GAAP) and the following
relevant Acts:
•
•
•

Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997;

Public Finance Management Act (PFMA as
amended) No. 1 of 1999; and

Public Audit Act No. 25 of 2004.

Other activities, as outlined in section 30 of the Water

Going Concern

include other services that complement bulk water

the going concern basis. The Board of Mhlathuze Water

environmental management, laboratory services and

adequate resources to continue as a going concern in

Services Act, Mhlathuze Water also engages in

The annual financial statements have been prepared on

service delivery such as water quality monitoring and

has reasonable grounds to believe that the business has

acting as an implementing agent for any sphere of

the foreseeable future. The going concern assessment

M h l a t h u z e
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was undertaken taking into consideration the following:
•

Mhlathuze Water has adequate committed

credit facilities from its lenders to fund its
operations and meet its financial obligations

in the normal course of business for the
foreseeable future.
•

1

able to successfully fund its capital expenditure

Members of the
Board

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

11

Chief Executive

Executive Director (Ex Officio)

1

External
Member

Independent Non-Executive
Director

1

developed to ensure that Mhlathuze Water is

The operational and financial risks have
been reviewed to determine their impact on

mitigating initiatives, strategies and controls are
in place as reflected in the business and risk
management plans.

The accumulated reserves have improved by
18.8% compared to the prior year.

The interest cover and cash interest cover are

significantly better than the prior year and it’s
covering over 4.62 times (2013: 3.29).

•

The Board is currently made up as follows:
Independent Non-Executive
Director

the business under various conditions, and

•

Director has any equity interest in the organisation.
Chairman

parameters.

•

Mhlathuze Water has no share capital and therefore no

A funding strategy and plan has been

programme without breaching the set financial
•

Share Capital and Directors’
Interests

Based on the new business plan for 20152019 the cash flow forecast reflects that there

will be sufficient funds to cover all liquidity
requirements. Mhlathuze Water will fund its

capital expenditure from surpluses and cash
available.

Restatement in Prior Years’ Balances
There was no restatement in prior years balances
requiring adjustment to/or disclosure in the financial
statement.

Corporate Governance and Risk
Management
The Board supports and complies with the principles

of Corporate Practices and Conduct as set out in the
King III Report which was adopted in the financial

year. The Board is responsible for monitoring the Risk
Management process.

For more details on corporate governance and risk
management, refer to pages 16 to 25 under Enterprise
Risk Management.

The composition of the Board is set out on pages 17
and 18 of the annual report. Members of the Board SubCommittees are disclosed in the Remuneration Report
on page 61 in terms of regulation 28.1 of the PFMA.

Members of the Board and the Executive Committee’s

emoluments are disclosed in the Remuneration Report
on page 61 in terms of regulation 28.1 of the PFMA.

Business Address 			
Corner of Battery Bank and South Central Arterial 		

Alton Industrial Area					

Richards Bay						
3900				

Postal Address
Private Bag x1047
Richards Bay
3900

Auditors
Internal Auditors – SizweNtsalubaGobodo
Appointed: 11 October 2012
3-year term

External Auditors – KPMG INC.
Appointed: 27 May 2013
3-year term

Tariff Policy
Mhlathuze Water charges a tariff for services rendered,
which ensures that it remains viable and sustainable

over the long term. To achieve this, Mhlathuze Water
applies a Scheme-Specific tariff for Bulk Services and/

A n n u a l
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or time and material type charges for other services.
The policy takes account of the stipulations contained
in section 10 of the Water Services Act.

The annual tariff review process is in terms of the requirements
of Section 42 of the Municipal Finance Management Act
and Circular 23 issued by National Treasury.

Financial Performance
The overall performance against financial targets was

positive as outlined in more detail under the financial
overview on pages 48-57 of the report.

Capital Expenditure and
Commitments
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant

of gross revenue which equates to R3.46 million (2013:
R3.15 million). Management also apply a qualitative
aspect to all errors found.

Fruitless and Wasteful
Expenditure
There was no fruitless and wasteful expenditure during
the current financial year.

Irregular Expenditure
There were no material losses from irregular expenditure
during the current financial year.

Unauthorised Expenditure
There were no incidents or reports of any unauthorised

and equipment will be financed from borrowings and

expenditure during the current financial year.

in note 18 of the financial statements.

Financial Misconduct

internal resources. The capital commitments are set out

Events after Reporting Period
There were no post-balance sheet events requiring
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

Mr AS Makhanya was appointed in the position of Chief
Executive Officer on 3 September 2014.

Information Required by the
Public Finance Management Act
No. 1 of 1991
In assessing the materiality framework account, is

taken of the following criteria: In terms of section 28.3.1

of the regulations of the PFMA, for the purposes of
materiality and significance, the Accounting Authority

has developed and agreed to a framework of acceptable

levels of materiality and significance established at 1%

There were no incidents or reports of any financial
misconduct during the current financial year.

Disclosure in Terms of Directives
Received
There were no directives received during the current
financial year.

Remuneration Report
Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
assists the Board in applying policies approved by the
Board for remunerating executives.

The Board’s remuneration is determined and approved
by the Department of Water Affairs on an annual basis.
(see table on page 61)

The service contract period for each executive is listed below.
Executive

Date of employment

Date of appoinment in current
position

Term of employment

19 June 2008

01 July 2010

30 June 2015 (5-year contract)

07 August 1995

01 July 2010

Permanent

07 April 2008

01 December 2008

Permanent

01 November 2012

01 November 2012

30 November 2017 (5-year
contract)

Sibusiso Makhanya
Mandla Myeni
Swaswa Nthloro
Brian Ndaba
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Board Members and Executives’ Emoluments
Fees for
services
as Board
member

Package
Travel &
earnings re-location
allowances

Performance
incentive
bonus

Other
services &
acting allowances

Total
2014

Total
2013

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

290

-

-

-

-

290

436

8

-

1

-

-

9

75

BV Mshengu

100

-

17

-

-

117

61

NN Khumalo

87

-

14

-

-

101

80

PS Dlamini

217

-

26

-

-

243

100

N Gevers

115

-

21

-

-

136

63

A Badul

184

-

25

-

-

209

203

MM Xulu

71

-

2

-

-

73

99

EM Mzimela

53

-

5

-

-

58

149

BK Rawlins

73

-

2

-

-

75

195

ADV S Chamane

69

-

1

-

-

70

177

TC Madikane

222

-

27

-

-

249

148

FG Bosman

124

-

13

-

-

137

108

1 613

-

154

-

-

1 767

1 894

AS Makhanya – Acting Chief Executive

-

-

-

-

476

476

105

V Botes – Chief Executive*

-

748

-

-

452

1 200

1 903

Total Executive Board Member

-

748

-

-

928

1 676

2 008

BS Nthloro – General Manager
Scientific Services

-

783

93

76

40

992

1 088

AS Makhanya – Chief Operations
Officer

-

1 427

224

124

71

1 846

1 801

M Myeni – Human Resources Manager

-

1 054

-

82

50

1 186

1 092

M Myeni – Acting Chief Executive

-

-

-

-

42

42

-

BS Ndaba – Chief Financial Officer

-

1 226

272

72

10

1 580

989

Total Executive Staff Members

-

4 490

589

354

213

5 646

4 970

Total Executive Board Member and
Executive Staff Members

-

5 238

589

354

1 141

7 322

6 978

1 613

5 238

743

354

1 141

9 089

8 872

Non-Executive Board Members
DC Myeni (Chairperson)
TM Zuma

Total Non-Executive Board Members
Executive Board Member

Executive Staff Members

Total Board Members and Executive
Emoluments
* V Botes – retired end November 2013
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REsponsiBiLiTY of ACCoUnTinG
AUTHoRiTY
The Board of Mhlathuze Water, as the Accounting Authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of

the annual financial statements of Mhlathuze Water, comprising the statement of financial position at 30 June 2014,
and the statements other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the

notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes, in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP), and
the requirements of the Water Services Act (Act No. 108 of 1997) and sub-section 55 (i)(b) of the Public Finance
Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999) of South Africa.

The Board is also responsible for such internal control as the Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining
adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management.

The Board have made an assessment of the ability of the entity to continue as a going concern and have no reason to
believe that the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Approval of annual financial statements:
The annual financial statements of Mhlathuze Water, as identified in the first paragraph, were approved by the Board
of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Ms Dudu Myeni

Mr Sibusiso Makhanya

Date: 14 October 2014

Date: 14 October 2014

Chairperson of the Board
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Independent auditor’s report
To Parliament and the Executive Authority, the Minster of the Department of
Water Affairs

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Mhlathuze Water as set out on pages 66 to 95, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and

cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information to the financial statements.

Accounting Authority’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

and the requirements by the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the
accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit

in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mhlathuze

Water as at 30 June 2014, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with

South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act of South Africa.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Public Audit Act Requirements (PAA)
In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa (PAA), and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, we

report the following findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and

regulations as well as internal control. We performed tests to identify reportable findings as described under each
subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or conclusion on these matters.

A n n u a l
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

Predetermined Objectives
We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the Corporate
Performance Scorecard report as set out on pages 26 to 28 of the annual report, and reported thereon to the
Accounting Authority.

The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness
and reliability.

The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance
with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with the

planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are well defined,

verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing
programme performance information.

The reliability of the information in the reported performance against predetermined objectives is assessed to determine
whether it is valid, accurate and complete.

We report that there were no material findings on the Corporate Performance Scorecard report concerning the
usefulness and reliability of the information.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters.

We did not identify any instances of material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and
regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal Control
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, Corporate Performance Scorecard

and compliance with laws and regulations, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that were considered sufficiently significant for inclusion in this
report.

KPMG Inc.

Per N Bhoola

KPMG House,

Chartered Accountant (SA)

5 Arundel Close,

Registered Auditor

Kingsmead Office Park,

Director

Durban 4000, South Africa

15 October 2014
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Annual financial statements
Accounting Policies
1. Basis of Preparation

Rand, which is the entity’s functional currency. All

Statement of Compliance

thousand Rand, unless otherwise indicated.

information presented has been rounded to the nearest

The financial statements are prepared in accordance

with South African Statements of Generally Accepted

Use of Estimates and Judgements

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), and the

with SA GAAP requires management to make

Africa.

the application of accounting policies and the reported

Accounting Practice (SA GAAP), the Public Finance

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

Water Services Act, 1997 (Act No. 108 of 1997) of South

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect

The financial statements were approved by the Board of
Mhlathuze Water on 14 October 2014.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the
historic cost basis, unless specified otherwise. The
financial statements are prepared on the going concern
basis.

The financial statements are presented in South African

M h l a t h u z e

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis, including making assumptions
concerning future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances. The actual

results may differ from these estimates. Revisions to
accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Functional and Presentation Currency
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accounting policies that have the most significant effect

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,

is included in the following notes:

flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which

on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
•

Note 18 – Accounting for an arrangement

•

Note 18 – Lease classification

containing a lease

Information

about

assumptions

or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by
the entity is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

and

estimation

uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in

a material adjustment within the next financial year are
included in the following notes:
•

Note 14 – Provisions and liabilities

•

Note 6 – Property, plant and equipment

•

Note 9 – Trade and other receivables

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net

amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the entity has a legal right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a

net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The entity has the following non-derivative financial
assets:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or

The accounting policies set out below have been

determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

financial statements.

value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.

2.1. Foreign Currency Transactions

are measured at amortised cost using the effective

applied consistently to all periods presented in these

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the

functional currency of the entity at rates of exchange

ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at

market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans and
receivables comprise trade, staff and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents.

the statement of financial position date are translated

Cash and cash equivalents

ruling at the statement of financial position date. The

short-term cash investments and call deposits. Bank

difference between amortised cost in the functional

an integral part of the entity’s cash management are

effective interest and payments during the period, and

for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

to the functional currency at the rates of exchange

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances,

foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the

overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form

currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents

the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the

Non-derivative financial liabilities
The entity initially recognises debt securities issued
on the date that they are originated. All other financial
liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at
which the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Gains
and losses arising on translation are recognised in profit
or loss.

2.2. Financial Instruments
Non-derivative financial assets
The entity initially recognises loans and receivables

The entity derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or

on the date that they are originated. All other financial

expire.

the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net

assets are recognised initially on the trade date at which
of the instrument.

The entity derecognises a financial asset when the

amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the entity has a legal right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a
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Accounting Policies (continued)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.2. Financial Instruments (continued)

net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The entity has the following non-derivative financial
liabilities: loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts and
trade and other payables.

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.3. Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-

to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the

lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably

certain that the entity will obtain ownership by the end of
the lease term.
Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
from the date they are available for use, or in respect

of self-constructed assets, from the date the asset is
completed and ready for use.

Owned assets

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at

property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual

impairment losses.

useful lives. Depreciation is generally recognised in profit

cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the bringing the asset to the location and condition

values using the straight-line basis over their estimated

or loss, unless the amount is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner

The depreciation methods, estimated remaining useful

assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour,

Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date

intended by management. The cost of self-constructed
any other costs directly attributable to bringing assets to
a location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management. The
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.

When property, plant and equipment comprises major
components with different useful lives, these major

components are accounted for as separate items of
property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the

proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of

property, plant and equipment and are recognised net
within ‘other income’ in profit or loss.
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant

and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the entity and its
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lives and residual values are reviewed at least annually.

that the asset is classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 and the date that the asset is derecognised.
Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Water and effluent scheme property, plant and equipment:
• Buildings, civil works, electrical
installations and pipelines

20 years

• Plant and equipment

3-10 years

Movable property, plant and equipment:
• Workshop tools, electronic and sundry 3 years
equipment
• Vehicles, office, workshop and voice
communication equipment

5 years

• Office furniture, laboratory and
workshop equipment

5-10 years
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Accounting Policies (continued)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.3. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is non-current assets under

construction and is stated at cost. Depreciation is not

•

provided on capital work in progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition
or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised on
qualifying assets in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs.

2.4. Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity, and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Software

Software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment. Internally developed and packaged

software and the direct costs associated with the
development and installation thereof are capitalised and
recognised as intangible assets.

Costs relating to the acquisition of licences are treated as
an expense in the period in which the licence is acquired.

other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the project.
the entity’s ability to reliably measure the
expenditure attributable to the project during its
development.

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Amortisation

Amortisation

is

charged

to

the

statement

of

comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such

lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are systematically tested for impairment at each
reporting date. Other intangible assets are amortised
from the date they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:
•
•

Customised software

3 years

Shelf software

3 years

Research and development

2.5. Inventories

prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge

realisable value. The cost of inventories is determined

incurred.

expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net

and understanding, is recognised in profit or loss when

using the weighted average cost method and includes

Development expenditure is recognised as an expense,

unless it is probable that it will give rise to a product that
will generate future benefits for the entity, in which case
it is capitalised.

Development costs are recognised as assets if all the
following are demonstrated:

bringing them to their existing location and condition.
Inventories

held

by

the

entity

comprise

maintenance spares, consumables and chemicals.

water,

2.6. Impairment
Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss

•

The technical feasibility of completing the project

is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether

•

The entity’s intention to complete the project and

asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence

The entity’s ability to use or sell the project.

on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

•
•
•

so that it will be available for use or sale.

there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial

use or sell it.

indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect

How the project will generate probable future

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can

economic benefits.

The availablity of adequate technical, financial and

include: default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the entity on terms that the entity
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Accounting Policies (continued)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.6. Impairment (continued)
Financial assets (including receivables) (continued)
would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or
issuer will enter bankruptcy, and the disappearance of an
active market for a security.
The entity considers evidence of impairment for
receivables at both a specific asset and collective level.
All individually significant receivables are assessed
for specific impairment. All individually significant
receivables found not to be specifically impaired are
then collectively assessed for any impairment that has
been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables that are
not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping together receivables with similar
risk characteristics.
In assessing collective impairment the entity uses
historical trends of the probability of default, timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted
for management’s judgement as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual
losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by
historical trends.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an
allowance account against receivables. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognised through the
unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the entity’s non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss.
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The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a risk free discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing
use and are largely independent of the cash flows of other
assets or groups of assets (the ‘cash-generating unit’).
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation if no impairment loss has been recognised.

2.7. Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit
or loss when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in future payments is available.
Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due
more than 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the service are discounted to their
present value.
Other long-term employee benefits
The entity’s net obligation in respect of long-term
employee benefits other than pension plans is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit
is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair
value of any related assets is deducted.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on AA
credit-rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the entity’s obligations. The calculation is
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Accounting Policies (continued)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.7. Employee Benefits (continued)
performed using the projected unit credit method. Any
actuarial gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when
the entity is demonstrably committed, without realistic
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to
either terminate employment before the normal retirement
date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are
recognised as an expense if the entity has made an offer
encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the
offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances
can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more
than 12 months after the reporting period, then they are
discounted to their present value.
Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on
an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term cash bonus if the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.8. Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2.9. Revenue
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of Mhlathuze Water’s activities.
Revenue is shown, exclusive of value added tax, rebates
and discounts. Revenue is recognised as follows:
Goods sold and services rendered
Revenue from the sale of water is recognised in the

statement of comprehensive income when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer. Revenue comprises primarily the net invoiced
value of water sales, exclusive of value-added tax, at
declared tariffs arising from normal trading activities.
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income in proportion to the
stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting period.
Management services
Management services is recognised in the period in which
the services are rendered in terms of the agreements with
external water services entities.
Implementing agency revenue
Implementing agency revenue is recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a
proportion of the total service to be provided.
Operation and maintenance services (O & M)
Operation and maintenance services is recognised in the
period in which the services are rendered. O & M revenue
relates to bulk water and bulk waste water services
operated on behalf of water service authorities.
Operating lease income
Operating lease income is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred by
lessors in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
shall be added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the lease income.

2.10. Other operating income
Other operating income is recognised when the significant

risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
purchaser and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

2.11. Cost of sales
This represents the cost of raw water purchased from the
Thukela/Goedertrouw/Mhlathuze River System scheme.
Other costs to provide services are reflected in the
statement of comprehensive income under operating,
general and administrative expenses.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.12. Government Grants
Government grants (if any should be received) are recognised
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the entity
will comply with the conditions associated with the grant.
Grants that compensate the entity for expenses incurred are
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are recognised.
Grants that compensate the entity for the cost of an asset
are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the useful life of the asset.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the entity determines
whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A
specific asset is the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified
asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset
if the arrangement conveys to the entity the right to control
the use of the underlying asset.
At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement,
the entity separates payments and other considerations

required by such an arrangement into those for the lease
and those for other elements on the basis of their relative

2.13. Leases
Leases in terms of which the entity assumes substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset
is measured at an amount equal to its fair value and if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to that asset. If there is no reasonable certainty that the
entity will obtain ownership by the end of the finance lease
term, the assets are fully depreciated over the shorter of
the finance lease term and its estimated useful life.

fair values. If the entity concludes for a finance lease that it

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised
on the entity’s statement of financial position. Payments
made under operating leases are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight
line basis over the period of the lease. In case of early
termination, penalties are recognised as an expense in
the period in which termination occurred.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on
borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions and
impairment losses recognised on financial assets. All
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.
Lease payments made under finance leases are
apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability.
The finance expense is allocated to each period during
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising
the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of
the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
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is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an asset

and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair
value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is

reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance
charge on the liability is recognised using the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate.

2.14. Finance Income and Costs
Finance income comprises interest income on funds
invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in
profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

effective interest method.

2.15. Segment Reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the entity
that is engaged either in providing related products or
services (business segment), which is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other segments.
Segment information is presented in respect of the
entity’s business segments. The business segments
are determined based on the entity’s management and
internal reporting structure.
Segment results, that are reported to the entity’s Chief
Executive (the chief operating decision maker) include
assets and liabilities and items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.16. Related Parties
a.

b.

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
i. Has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
ii. Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
iii. Is a member of the key management personnel
of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.
An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies:
i. The entity and the reporting entity are
members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).
ii. One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
iii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the
reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the reporting entity.
vi. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent entity).

2.17. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure
that was made in vain and would have been avoided
had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and
wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure
in the statement of comprehensive income and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in

contravention of the entity’s supply chain management
policies. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised

expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as
expenditure in the statement of comprehensive income
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for
as revenue in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.19. New Standards and Interpretations not yet Adopted
The following new standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations applicable to the entity are not yet effective
for the year ended 30 June 2014, and have not been applied
in preparing these annual financial statements:		
Standard/Interpretation

Date issued Effective
by IASB
date Periods
beginning on
or after

AC125
(lAS 32)

Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities

December
2011

January
2014

AC128
(lAS 36)

Recoverable amount May 2013
disclosures for Nonfinancial Assets

1 January
2014

IFRIC 21

Levies

May 2013

1 January
2014

AC116
(lAS 19)

Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee
Contnbutions

November
2013

1 July 2014

Amendments Improvements to
to 6
IFRSs 2010-2012
standards
Cycle

December
2013

1 July 2014

Amendments Improvements to
to 4
IFRSs 2010-2013
standards
Cycle

December
2013

1 July 2014

IFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral
Accounts

January
2014

1 January
2016

AC123 and
AC129
(lAS 16 and
lAS 38)

Clarification of
May 2014
Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and
Amortisation

1 January
2016

IFRS 15

Revenue from
contracts with
customers

May 2014

1 January
2017

(AC 146)
IFRS 9

Financial Instruments July 2014

1 January
2018

The Board believes that the adoption of these standards
in future periods will have no material impact on the
financial statements of Mhlathuze Water.

2.18. Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to
the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and the
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
2014

2013

R’000

R’000

346 047

314 971

Cost of sales

(38 466)

(37 999)

Gross profit

307 581

276 972

3 526

15 450

(225 873)

(213 171)

(78 685)

(65 587)

Note
Revenue

2

Other operating income

2.2

Operating, general and administrative expenses
Staff costs
Energy

(40 012)

(38 787)

Maintenance materials

(14 836)

(16 042)

(8 423)

(10 089)

Depreciation/amortisation

(44 976)

(44 579)

Other operating expenses

(38 941)

(38 087)

85 234

79 251

(6 036)

(11 181)

Chemicals/purification

Results from operating activities

3

Net finance costs
Finance income

4

12 417

12 939

Finance costs

5

(18 453)

(24 120)

79 198

68 070

-

-

79 198

68 070

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2014
Note

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

6

577 260

494 007

Intangible assets

7

724

1 093

577 984

495 100

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories

8

5 227

5 175

Trade and other receivables

9

143 624

88 181

Cash and cash equivalents – Implementing Agent Projects

10

46 411

56 798

Cash and cash equivalents

11

212 344

251 203

Total current assets

407 606

401 357

Total assets

985 590

896 457

Retained income

265 606

194 413

Capital replacement reserve

211 152

207 094

13 109

9 768

Maintenance reserve

7 087

6 695

Insurance reserve

3 816

3 602

500 770

421 572

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
Reserves

Business development reserve

Total reserves
Non-current liabilities
Long-term interest-bearing borrowings

12

168 470

189 553

Income received in advance

13

95 112

103 141

Provisions and liabilities

14

Total non-current liabilities

258

258

263 840

292 952

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

15

185 975

147 459

Short-term interest-bearing borrowings

12

22 110

22 110

Income received in advance

13

8 065

8 272

Provisions and liabilities

14

4 830

4 092

Total current liabilities

220 980

181 933

Total reserves and liabilities

985 590

896 457
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Retained
income

Capital
replacement
reserve

Business
development
reserve

Maintenance
reserve

Insurance
reserve

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

129 469

205 095

9 214

6 325

3 399

353 502

68 070

-

-

-

-

68 070

(3 126)

1 999

554

370

203

-

Balance as at 30 June 2013

194 413

207 094

9 768

6 695

3 602

421 572

Total comprehensive income

79 198

-

-

-

-

79 198

(8 005)

4 058

3 341

392

214

-

265 606

211 152

13 109

7 087

3 816

500 770

Note
Balance as at 1 July 2012
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Transfers to reserves

for the year
Transfers to reserves
Balance as at 30 June 2014
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Notes

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

21.1

130 210

123 830

Changes in working capital

21.2

(16 241)

19 560

- finance costs

5

(18 453)

(24 120)

- finance costs capitalised

5

(3 355)

(205)

92 161

119 065

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

692

1 386

(128 552)

(35 401)

3 355

205

- proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

6&7

- adjustment for borrowing costs capitalised

5

- finance income

4

Net cash utilised in investing activities

12 417

12 939

(112 088)

(20 871)

Cash flows from financing activities
- decrease in interest bearing borrowings

12

(21 083)

(22 110)

- decrease in income received in advance

13

(8 236)

(8 319)

Net cash utilised in financing activities

(29 319)

(30 429)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(49 246)

67 765

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

11

308 001

240 236

258 755

308 001

A n n u a l

R e p o r t

2 0 1 3 / 2 0 1 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Mhlathuze Water has two reportable segments:
(i) The primary activities segment as defined by section 29 of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997 which is made up of:
(a) Bulk water
This activity covers the bulk supplies and other related water services made under contract in the Richards Bay/Empangeni
area from plants owned by Mhlathuze Water.
It also covers bulk supplies made and other related water services under contract to district municipalities, Water Services
Institutions and the Department of Water Affairs from plants owned by these bodies.
Revenue generated based on water usage has been reflected under this segment.
(b) Waste water
This activity covers buoyant and dense effluent disposals under contract to industries and municipalities in the Richards Bay
area from plants owned by Mhlathuze Water.
(ii) The other segment activities as defined by section 30 of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997 consist of non-regulated
activities which are mainly defined as services that complement bulk water service provision such as water quality monitoring,
environmental management, laboratory services and where Mhlathuze Water acts as an implementing agent for any sphere of
government for projects related to water service delivery.
Primary activities
Bulk water

Waste water

Other
activities

TOTAL

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

47 588

64 752

-

112 340

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

208 228

110 030

27 789

346 047

For the year ended 2014
Volume sold

Revenue
Cost of sales

(38 466)

-

-

(38 466)

Gross profit

169 762

110 030

27 789

307 581

2 234

1 292

-

3 526

Operating, general and administrative expenses

(146 586)

(79 287)

-

(225 873)

Other administrative expenses

(120 437)

(60 461)

-

(180 898)

Depreciation and amortisation

Other operating income

(26 149)

(18 826)

-

(44 975)

Operating income before finance costs

25 410

32 035

27 789

85 234

Net finance costs

(2 825)

(3 211)

-

(6 036)

Surplus for the year

22 585

28 824

27 789

79 198

Capital expenditure

81 890

30 225

-

112 115

Centralised services

16 437
128 552

Segment assets

369 738

140 177

707 578

Centralised services

278 012

Consolidated total assets

985 590

Segment liabilities

78

197 663

9 894

111 167

140 177

261 238

Centralised services

223 581

Consolidated total liabilities

484 819
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Primary activities
Bulk water

1.

Other
activities

Waste water

TOTAL

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

44 175

64 752

-

108 927

BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 2013
Volume sold

Revenue

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

193 304

102 107

19 560

314 971

Cost of sales

(37 999)

-

-

(37 999)

Gross profit

155 305

102 107

19 560

276 972

10 033

5 417

-

15 450

Operating, general and administrative expenses

(139 869)

(73 302)

-

(213 171)

Other administrative expenses

(114 496)

(54 096)

-

(168 592)

Depreciation and amortisation

(25 373)

(19 206)

-

(44 579)

25 469

34 222

19 560

79 251

Other operating income

Operating income before finance costs
Net finance costs

(6 421)

(4 760)

-

(11 181)

Surplus for the year

19 048

29 462

19 560

68 070

Capital expenditure

31 213

4 188

-

35 401

312 366

185 124

106 672

604 162

Segment assets
Centralised services

292 295

Consolidated total assets

896 457

Segment liabilities

19 205

114 367

106 672

240 244

Centralised services

234 641

Consolidated total liabilities

474 885
2014

2013

kl’000

kl’000

7 380

4 263

Volume of bulk water – purified

40 208

39 912

Volume of waste water

64 752

64 752

112 340

108 927

VOLUME SOLD
Volume of bulk water – raw

Total volume sold

A n n u a l

R e p o r t
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2.

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

- bulk water

156 799

142 425

- waste water

69 618

64 122

REVENUE
Tariff income
An analysis of tariff income is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)

Other activities (Section 30)
- management services
- laboratory services

-

38

5 717

6 291

22 074

13 232

254 208

226 108

- bulk water

51 429

50 878

- waste water

40 412

37 985

Total operating lease income

91 841

88 863

- bulk water

208 228

193 303

- waste water

110 030

102 107

- implementing agency fees
Total tariff income

Operating lease income
An analysis of operating lease income is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)

Total revenue
An analysis of total revenue is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)

Other activities (Section 30)
- management services
- laboratory services
- implementing agency fees
Total revenue

2.1

-

38

5 717

6 291

22 072

13 232

346 047

314 971

EXTERNAL PROJECTS (SECTION 30 ACTIVITIES)
Mhlathuze Water, apart from its primary activities, administers External Projects (Section 30 activities) for the Department of Water
Affairs, Department of Education, Department of Environmental Affairs and the Department of Co-operative Governance and
Traditional Affairs on their behalf. Total expenditure for these projects is fully recovered from these departments.
These amounts below are not reflected in the statement of comprehensive income as it is deemed that Mhlathuze Water is an
agent in these transactions. Accordingly, the implementing agency fees have been recognised as revenue in the statement of
comprehensive income.
The following projects’ activities took place during the year:
458 274

338 971

86 238

159 860

294 517

136 005

- Department of Environmental Affairs – alien plant removal

27 849

29 606

- Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs

46 000

-

3 670

13 500

- Department of Education – school sanitation
- Department of Water Affairs – water infrastructure

- Department of Water Affairs – other

The above amounts have been incurred on behalf of the respective departments and are recoverable from them.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2014

2013

R’000

R’000

2 759

9 564

767

5 886

3 526

15 450

- external audit fees current year

(907)

(953)

Internal audit fees

(840)

(630)

(2 252)

(4 087)

2.

REVENUE (continued)

2.2

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Included in other operating income:
- Income from DWA in relation to disputed amounts
- Sundry income
Total other operating income

3.

RESULTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Results from operating activities is stated after taking the following discloseable items
into account:
Included in other operating expenses:
Auditor's remuneration

Operating lease charges
Provision for impairment of receivables
Raising of provision for impairment of trade receivables

(78)

(392)

Release of provision for impairment of trade receivables

359

1 049

-

(5)

281

652

- Salaries and wages

(58 362)

(47 604)

- Provision for bonus

(4 267)

(3 875)

- Defined contribution plan expense

(8 515)

(6 545)

(219)

(314)

Provision for impairment of sundry receivables
Total of provision for impairment of receivables
Staff costs:

- Medical aid contributions

(7 322)

(7 249)

(78 685)

(65 587)

No.

No.

165

148

Contractors against vacant posts

8

0

Contractors other

3

8

Trainees

6

4

182

160

- Executive members and Executive staff members
Total staff costs

Number of employees as at 30 June 2014
Permanent

Total number of employees

A n n u a l

R e p o r t
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4.

2013

R’000

R’000

FINANCE INCOME
12 303

12 916

- recovery from customers

93

7

- bank account

21

16

12 417

12 939

(21 807)

(24 324)

(1)

(1)

3 355

205

(18 453)

(24 120)

- call accounts/investments

Total finance income

5.

2014

FINANCE COSTS
Loans
Bank overdraft
Less: borrowing cost capitalised
Total finance costs

Finance costs were capitalised to work-in-progress at the average gross weighted cost of debt of 10.67% p.a. (2013: 10.68%).

6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land

Buildings
and infrastructure

Furniture
and
equipment

Plant and
machinery

Vehicles

Capital
work in
progress

TGMR
Temporary
assets

Total
2014

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Carrying Amount 1 July 2013

1 829

137 565

8 548

316 933

2 897

26 235

-

494 007

Cost

Year ended 30 June 2014

82

1 829

240 251

20 793

554 065

5 247

26 235

33 295

881 715

Accumulated depreciation

-

(102 686)

(12 245)

(236 761)

(2 350)

-

(33 295)

(387 337)

Accumulated impairments

-

-

-

(371)

-

-

-

(371)

Additions

-

1 694

3 682

13 550

911

124 991

-

144 828

Borrowing costs capitalised

-

-

-

-

-

3 270

-

3 270

Commissioning

-

-

-

-

-

(19 838)

-

(19 838)

Disposals/asset write-offs

-

(114)

(58)

(517)

(3)

-

-

(692)

Cost

-

(468)

(198)

(2 804)

(114)

-

-

(3 584)

Accumulated depreciation

-

354

140

2 287

111

-

-

2 892

Depreciation charge

-

(11 555)

(2 584)

(29 493)

(683)

-

-

(44 315)

Total property, plant and
equipment

1 829

127 590

9 588

300 473

3 122

134 658

-

577 260

Cost

1 829

241 477

24 277

564 811

6 045

134 658

33 295

1 006 392

Accumulated depreciation

-

(113 887)

(14 689)

(263 967)

(2 923)

-

(33 295)

(428 761)

Accumulated impairments

-

-

-

(371)

-

-

-

(371)

Total property, plant and
equipment

1 829

127 590

9 588

300 473

3 122

134 658

-

577 260
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Land

Buildings and
infrastructure

Furniture
and
equipment

Plant
and
machinery

Vehicles

Capital
work in
progress

TGMR
Temporary
assets

Total
2013

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Carrying Amount 1 July 2012

1 829

141 040

7 405

340 630

3 401

9 080

-

503 385

Cost

1 829

233 560

17 529

550 746

5 043

9 080

33 295

851 082

Accumulated depreciation

-

(92 520)

(10 124)

(209 745)

(1 642)

-

(33 295)

(347 326)

Accumulated impairments

-

-

-

(371)

-

-

-

(371)

Additions

-

10 325

1 990

4 767

214

34 246

-

51 542

Borrowing costs capitalised

-

-

-

-

-

205

-

205

Commissioning

-

-

-

-

-

(17 296)

-

(17 296)

Disposals/asset write-offs

-

(118)

(18)

(1 249)

-

-

-

(1 385)

Cost

-

(129)

(220)

(3 459)

(9)

-

-

(3 817)

Accumulated depreciation

-

11

202

2 210

9

-

-

2 432

Transfers

-

(3 678)

1 388

2 290

-

-

-

-

Cost

-

(3 505)

1 494

2 011

-

-

-

-

Accumulated depreciation

-

(173)

(106)

279

-

-

-

-

Depreciation charge

-

(10 004)

(2 217)

(29 504)

(718)

-

-

(42 443)

Total property, plant and
equipment

1 829

137 565

8 548

316 934

2 897

26 235

-

494 008

Cost

1 829

240 251

20 793

554 066

5 248

26 235

33 295

881 717

Accumulated depreciation

-

(102 686)

(12 245)

(236 761)

(2 351)

-

(33 295)

(387 338)

Accumulated impairments

-

-

-

(371)

-

-

-

(371)

Total property, plant and
equipment

1 829

137 565

8 548

316 934

2 897

26 235

-

494 008

Year ended 30 June 2013

A n n u a l
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7.

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software
Year ended 30 June 2014
Carrying Amount 1 July 2013
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Additions
Amortisation

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Total intangible assets

1 093

2 279

13 559

12 609

(12 466)

(10 330)

292

950

(661)

(2 136)

724

1 093

13 851

13 559

(13 127)

(12 466)

724

1 093

8.

INVENTORIES

8.1

Stores

5 095

5 028

Consumables and maintenance spares

3 777

3 097

Chemicals

1 318

1 931

132

147

5 227

5 175

8.2

Water Inventory
Water inventory consists of closing stock of raw and treated water
Total inventories

9.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables – bulk and waste water

43 302

33 217

Trade receivables – project activities

93 766

49 874

Provision for impairment

(78)

(397)

Sundry receivables

493

3 908

45

42

Staff receivables
South African Revenue Services VAT receivable

3 039

-

Prepayments and deposits

3 057

1 537

143 624

88 181

Total trade and other receivables
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10.

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

Advances received in respect of Implementing Agent Projects

46 411

56 798

Total cash and cash equivalents – Departments of Water Affairs, Environmental
Affairs, Education and Cogta

46 411

56 798

Cash and cash equivalents

212 344

251 203

Cash and cash equivalents

212 344

251 203

212 344

251 203

46 411

56 798

258 755

308 001

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – IMPLEMENTING AGENT
PROJECTS
Advances received in respect of Implementing Agent Projects
Mhlathuze Water has entered into agreements with the Department of Water Affairs,
Department of Education, Department of Environmental Affairs and Department of
Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs to administer approved budgets per
annum against which Mhlathuze Water is allowed to incur expenses for bulk water and
sanitation funded projects as well as the “Working for Water” Programme.
For this purpose the Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education, Department
of Environmental Affairs and Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional
Affairs advances cash amounts to Mhlathuze Water in some instances and reimburses
Mhlathuze Water in other instances as and when costs are incurred on these projects.
On completion, the projects are handed to the District or local authorities.

11.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of six months or less and
that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair values.
Bank overdrafts and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents – Departments of Water Affairs, Environmental Affairs and
Education
Net cash and cash equivalents

A n n u a l

R e p o r t

2 0 1 3 / 2 0 1 4
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Financial
institution

Redeemable
date

Fixed
Balance
interest 30 June 2013
Rate (%)

12.

Redeemed

Balance
30 June 2014

R’000

R’000

R’000

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
Capital market loans
Fixed Term Loan

Nedbank

30/06/2020

10.89

82 353

(11 764)

70 589

Fixed Term Loan

RMB

28/11/2025

10.54

129 310

(9 319)

119 991

211 663

(21 083)

190 580

Total capital market loans
Short-term portion of loans

22 110

22 110

Long-term portion of loans

189 553

168 470

Total loans

211 663

190 580

The fixed term loan from Nedbank is repayable in bi-annual capital repayments which commenced 30 June 2012 and matures on
30 June 2020.
The fixed term loan from Rand Merchant Bank is repayable in bi-annual capital repayments which commenced 30 November 2011
and matures on 28 November 2025.
Debt consists of interest bearing liabilities held at amortised cost and are unsecured.

13.

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

INCOME RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
- Short-term portion of advances

8 065

8 272

- Long-term portion of advances

95 112

103 141

103 177

111 413

Total income received in advance

Income received in advance from Foskor relates to the construction of the B-Line Diffuser Replacement Project, which was
commissioned at the end of September 2008.

14.

PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES
Post-retirement medical aid liability
This provision is in respect of the one long standing pensioner.
This pensioner was already retired when Mhlathuze Water made the decision to pre-fund their liability towards medical aid costs
when employees retire.
For the purpose of calculating the post-retirement medical aid liability, a discount rate of 9% (2013: 9%) was applied and a medical
inflation rate of 7.5% (2013: 7.5%) was applied.
Balance at beginning of the year

314

314

Provided during the year

34

34

Utilised during the year

(34)

(34)

Balance at end of the year

314

314

Provision for staff bonus
The provision for bonus is raised to recognise the performance of employees, which is payable at the
Board’s discretion in line with the performance management policy.
Balance at beginning of the year

4 036

3 220

Provided during the year

4 774

4 036

Utilised during the year

(4 036)

(3 220)

4 774

4 036

5 088

4 350

Balance at end of the year
These provisions reflect management’s best estimate.
Total provisions and liabilities
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14.

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

56

56

Short-term portion of provision for staff bonuses

4 774

4 036

Short-term portion of the provision and liabilities

4 830

4 092

Long-term portion of the provision and liabilities

258

258

5 088

4 350

Trade payables

12 514

15 409

Trade payables – project activities

61 338

44 094

Accruals

29 609

22 518

PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
Short and long-term portion of the provision and liabilities
Short-term portion of post-retirement medical aid

15.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Retention monies

2 430

283

South African Revenue Services – PAYE, UIF, SDL and VAT

1 100

1 406

-

1 172

21 262

5 144

145

-

Accrued finance charges
Accruals – Section 30 activities
Sundry creditors
Sundry creditors – Section 30 activities

11 166

635

Section 30 customer advances (refer to note 16)

46 411

56 798

185 975

147 459

(272)

9 172

24 077

39 555

2 244

8 071

20 362

-

46 411

56 798

Total trade and other payables

16. ADVANCES – PROJECT ACTIVITIES
The Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education and Department of Environmental
Affairs approve a budget per annum against which Mhlathuze Water is allowed to incur expenses
for the externally funded projects as well as the Working for Water Programme. For this purpose the
Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education and Department of Environmental Affairs
advance cash amounts to Mhlathuze Water and reimburse them as and when cash is expended
on these projects. These projects are completed on behalf of the Department of Water Affairs,
Department of Education and Department of Environmental Affairs. The unutilised advances are
listed below:
Advances received from the Department of Water Affairs
Four projects are currently being managed.
Advances received from the Department of Education/Department of Basic Education (DOE/DBE)
Two projects are currently being managed.
Advances received from the Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA)
Twenty-three projects are currently being managed.
Advances received from the Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs (Cogta)
Two projects are currently being managed.
Funds on hand (included in cash balances and trade and other payables – refer note 10 and 15)

A n n u a l
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17.

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
46 199

- contracted and authorised
- authorised but not contracted
Total future capital commitments

54 945

6 511

55 045

52 710

109 990

2 238

3 697

These capital commitments will be financed from borrowings and internal resources.

18.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

18.1

Operating Lease Commitments
At the statement of financial position date Mhlathuze Water had outstanding commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years

8 380

9 945

Thereafter

12 352

14 808

Total operating lease commitments

22 970

28 450

91 539

86 062

Mhlathuze Water leases equipment and a pipeline from various institutions for periods of 1 to 20 years.

18.2

Operating Lease Receivable
Up to 1 year

427 092

409 631

Thereafter

1 776 295

2 615 057

Total operating lease receivable

2 294 926

3 110 750

1 to 5 years

Arrangements with the customers that contained deemed leases and qualify as operating leases are recognised in terms of AC117.
The above indicates the future lease rentals receivable.

19.

STATUTORY INFORMATION IN TERMS OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1999
Losses recovered or written off
78

392

Bad debts recovered (reversal of provision)

(359)

(1 049)

Totals

(281)

(657)

Bad debts provided for

Financial assistance from the State
None
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Notes

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Mhlathuze Water has made provision for pension and provident schemes covering all
employees substantially.
The funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act, 1956 (Act No. 24 of 1956).
Mhlathuze Water pension fund – defined contribution plan
Retirement benefits are determined based on contributions made into the fund – 9%
(2013: 13%) of employees contribute towards this fund. Mhlathuze Water has no
commitment to meet unfunded benefits of the pension fund.
Mhlathuze Water provident fund – defined contribution plan
The provident fund is in the nature of a defined contribution plan and is registered
as an insured scheme. Retirement benefits are determined with reference to the
contributions to the fund – 91% (2013: 87%) of employees contribute to the provident
fund. Mhlathuze Water has no commitment to meet unfunded benefits of the
provident fund.
Monthly company contributions are paid within 7 days after deduction from the
employees.

21. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
21.1

Cash Generated from Operations
Total comprehensive income for the year

79 198

68 070

44 976

44 579

Adjusted for:
- depreciation/amortisation

21.2

6, 7

- finance costs

4

18 453

24 120

- finance income

4

(12 417)

(12 939)

130 210

123 830

7

(52)

(1 783)

- increase in trade and other receivables

8

(55 443)

(30 671)

- increase in trade and other payables

15

38 516

51 198

- increase in provisions and liabilities

14

738

816

(16 241)

19 560

Changes in Working Capital
- increase in inventories

Net changes in working capital

A n n u a l

R e p o r t

2 0 1 3 / 2 0 1 4
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party relationships exist between the organisation, associated organisations, key management personnel, Board members
and all spheres of government organisations.
The nature and value of transactions concluded during the year and balances at year end are detailed below.
Organisation

Nature of transaction

Revenue

Expenditure

2014

2013

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Department of Water and Sanitation

Implementing/laboratory

23 447

-

37 767

2 450

Department of Water and Sanitation

TG Scheme

12 518

12 643

12 518

12 643

Foskor Limited

Effluent disposal and
income in advances

45 783

45 820

880

763

City of uMhlathuze

Electricity

-

-

27 590

26 661

City of uMhlathuze

Water and effluent

84 496

88 279

-

-

City of uMhlathuze

Lab/sundry

City of uMhlathuze

Operations and
maintenance

South African Association of
Water Utilities

Members fees

Related party transactions – organisations

115

171

-

-

3 048

-

-

-

-

-

167

228

169 407

146 913

78 922

42 745

-

-

9 089

8 872

Related party transactions – key management personnel (see
remuneration report)

Amounts owing by:
2014
2013
R’000
R’000

Amounts owing to:
2014
2013
R’000
R’000

Department of Water and Sanitation

Water Services TG Scheme

2 514

1 899

-

-

Department of Water and Sanitation

External/implementing/lab

63 218

34 768

3 772

9 172

Department of Water and Sanitation

Levies

-

-

-

880

Department of Education

External/implementing

-

16 071

-

-

Department of Basic Education

External/implementing

18 212

987

-

-

Foskor Limited

Effluent/laboratory/advances

3 937

3 572

99

-

City of uMhlathuze

Laboratory services/sundry

26

39

-

-

City of uMhlathuze

Water and effluent

9 622

8 426

2 520

2 324

City of uMhlathuze

Operations and maintenance

3 475

-

-

-

101 004

65 762

6 391

12 376

Related party balances – organisations

Certain members of the Board of Mhlathuze Water hold positions with entities having a relationship with Mhlathuze Water. The relationship
between the Board Member and the entity concerned, and the nature of the transactions involved with such entity, are listed below.
Board Member

Entity

Position held

Services rendered or received

D.C. Myeni

Chairperson
Chairperson

Transport services
Water Services

E.M. Mzimela

South African Airways;
South African Association of
Water Utilities
uMkhanyakude Municipality

Municipal Manager

M.M. Xulu

Foskor Limited

General Manager – Marketing and Sales

Municipal water and waste water
services
Bulk effluent disposal

F.G. Bosman

City of uMhlathuze

Councillor

Adv. S. Chamane Department of Transport

General Manager: Public Transport

N.N. Khumalo

Regional General Manager

Independent Development Trust

Municipal water and waste water
services
Transportation services
Infrastructure and social
development

The Remuneration Report on page 61 reflects Board members and senior management remuneration earned in their capacity as
Mhlathuze Water representatives.
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management
The entity has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk
This note presents information about Mhlathuze Water’s exposure to each of the above risks, objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk. The methods used to measure risk have been consistently applied in the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout the annual financial statements.
The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the entity’s risk management framework. Risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks that are faced by Mhlathuze Water, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to these limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the entity’s activities.
Presently all risks identified are attended to at departmental level and by a risk management committee. Reports are presented to
the Audit and Risk Committee, the Board’s delegated structure tasked with the responsibility of reviewing the risk management
process.
The Board reviews its enterprise-wide risk profile to ensure that critical risks are addressed adequately and to identify and capitalise
on opportunities that may be created from these risks. This provides the Board with the opportunity to re-assess the entity’s
strengths and weaknesses to determine a strategic alignment to the objectives.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Mhlathuze Water if a customer or a counter party to the financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations. Potential areas of credit risk are cash and cash equivalents, investments, trade receivables and other
receivables. Mhlathuze Water limits its exposure in relation to cash balances and investments by only dealing with well established
financial institutions of high quality credit rating approved by the Department of Water Affairs and National Treasury.
Trade and other receivables
The entity’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Board has established
a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the entity’s facilities are offered.
Consideration is given to the external credit ratings, tax clearance certificates and the latest audited annual financial statements of
entities not listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange.
Credit limits are established for non-contractual customers and these limits are reviewed bi-annually.
The average credit period allowed is 30 days from invoice date. Interest is charged at prime rate +2.5% p.a. on overdue debt.
Mhlathuze Water reviews outstanding balances on trade and other receivables on a monthly basis, via a debtors age analysis report.
A provision is raised in full for long overdue accounts. The provisions raised are tabled together with the annual financial statements
to the Audit and Risk Committee and the Board.
Partnership/water schemes with external parties
External parties are required to submit guarantees to Mhlathuze Water for all expenses incurred on their behalf. Any amounts
outstanding after a period of 30 days will attract interest at the current interest rate as announced by the Minister of Finance.

A n n u a l

R e p o r t

2 0 1 3 / 2 0 1 4

91

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2014

2013

R’000

R’000

Trade and other receivables

143 624

88 181

Cash and cash equivalents

258 755

308 001

402 379

396 182

22 193

19 259

Effluent disposal

9 549

8 843

Thukela Transfer Scheme

2 541

1 899

109 341

58 180

143 624

88 181

Gross

Impairment

23. Financial Instruments (continued)
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets that represent the maximum credit exposure at reporting
date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables per business segment at
reporting date was:
Water supply

Project activities
The most significant customer is Mondi Business Paper – Richards Bay. This customer accounts
for approximately 42.15% of the trade receivables under the water supply and effluent disposal
categories.
Provision for impairment
The ageing of trade receivables and other receivables at the
reporting date was:

Gross

Impairment

2014

2014

2013

2013

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

133 734

-

59 782

-

Past due 0-30 days

3 606

-

17 875

-

Past due 30-60 days

2 241

-

7 562

-

Not past due

Past due 60-90 days
Past due >90 days

568

-

1 453

-

3 475

(78)

369

(397)

143 624

(78)

87 041

(397)

2014

2013

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables and other
receivables:
Balance at 1 July 2013
Movement
Balance at 30 June 2014
In assessing the provision for impairment, Mhlathuze Water considered the likelihood of receiving
payments from its debtors irrespective of the length of time the debt was outstanding.
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23.

Financial Instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Mhlathuze Water will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Mhlathuze Water
is a self-funding entity and does not receive funding in the form of government subsidies. All funding of income generating and
operational assets are obtained by way of loan agreements.
The entity’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
reputation of Mhlathuze Water by managing the monthly cash flow throughout the year.
Mhlathuze Water operates a consolidated loan pool and utilises the positive inflows created by the system of depreciation to redeem
external borrowings. Finance charges are recovered via tariffs levied against consumers. For the purpose of treasury management
all long-term loans relating to the core business activities are pooled and an average rate of interest calculated and applied to the
schemes for tariff purposes. This achieves better control and ensures a fair and flexible recovery of finance charges, which assist in
planning the cash flow requirements.

Bank short-term funding
Mhlathuze Water’s main credit facility is with ABSA Bank and includes the following:
Type of Facility

Amounts (Rands)

- Overdraft facility

20 000 000
(fixed overdraft of 6 000 000 and five days daylight limit of 14 000 000 only over month end)

- ACB Credit facility

400 000

- Credit Card facility

50 000

- Travel Lodge Card

100 000

Mhlathuze Water also has a National Treasury-approved borrowing limit of R208.5 million to ensure business continuity.
Foreign currency borrowings
Any loan agreements entered into with foreign financial institutions must be approved by the Board and National Treasury.
Foreign currency forward rate agreements must be used to hedge all foreign currency borrowings.
Foreign currency forward rate agreements must be used to hedge all foreign material imported where not covered by contractors.
Exposure to liquidity risk
Financial Liabilities

Weighted
average rate
(%)

Carrying
amount

Contractual
amount

<1 year

2-5 years

>5 years

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

10.67

(190 580)

(288 902)

(40 690)

(143 410)

(104 802)

-

(185 975)

(185 975)

(185 975)

-

-

(376 555)

(474 877)

(226 665)

(143 410)

(104 802)

(211 663)

(333 988)

(44 060)

(152 872)

(137 056)

Year ended 30 June 2014
- interest-bearing borrowings
- trade and other payables
Total
Year ended 30 June 2013
- interest-bearing borrowings
- trade and other payables
Total

10.68
-

(147 459)

(147 459)

(147 459)

-

-

(359 122)

(481 447)

(191 519)

(152 872)

(137 056)
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23.

Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair values
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities are presented by class in the table below, and approximate to the fair values.
Loans and
receivables

Cash and bank
balances

Other financial
liabilities and
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

143 624

-

-

143 624

Bank and cash implementing agent projects

-

46 411

-

46 411

Bank and cash

-

212 344

-

212 344

Interest-bearing borrowing

-

-

(190 580)

(190 580)

Trade and other payables

-

-

(185 975)

(185 975)

143 624

258 755

(376 555)

25 824

88 181

-

-

88 181

30 June 2014
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

30 June 2013
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Bank and cash implementing agent projects

-

56 798

-

56 798

Bank and cash

-

251 203

-

251 203

-

-

(211 663)

(211 663)

-

-

(147 459)

(147 459)

88 181

308 001

(359 122)

37 060

Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowing
Trade and other payables

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risks comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The objective is to manage and control
market risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. The entity does not have any exposure to currency risk
(that is fluctuation in foreign exchange currency) or any equity price risk and Mhlathuze Water does not hold any equity investments.
Foreign exchange transaction exposures
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the entity will suffer a decrease in stakeholder wealth due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.
Due to the current nature of Mhlathuze Water’s business, it is unlikely to hold assets exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations.
Mhlathuze Water’s foreign exchange risk exposure is therefore limited.
Should Mhlathuze Water enter into foreign transactions, it is the responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer to obtain a fixed Rand price.
If this is not possible, all foreign exchange risk exposure will be covered by forward exchange contracts.
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23.

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

Financial Instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk
Mhlathuze Water adopted a policy of limiting exposure to interest rate fluctuations by arranging borrowings on a fixed rate basis. Cash
and short-term investments are invested at variable and fixed interest rates with registered banking institutions. At the reporting date
the interest rate profile for Mhlathuze Water’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
Fixed rate instruments
Carrying amount
Financial Assets
143 624

88 181

69 460

116 849

- fixed interest rate

189 295

191 152

Interest bearing borrowing - fixed interest rate

(190 580)

(211 663)

211 799

184 519

Trade and other receivables - variable interest rate
Bank and cash

- variable interest rate

Bank and cash
Financial Liabilities

Mhlathuze Water accounts for fixed and variable interest rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss,
and the entity does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model.
Notes in the annual financial statements relating to financial instruments already disclosed:
Finance income and costs - Note 4 & 5
Trade and other receivables - Note 9
Cash and cash equivalents - Note 10 & 11
Interest bearing borrowings - Note 12
Trade and other payables - Note 15

24. TAXATION
Mhlathuze Water is exempt from taxation in terms of section 10(1)(t) (ix) read with the definition of Water Services Provider in Section
1 of the Income Tax Act,1962 (Act No. 58 of 1962).

25. Capital replacement reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund upgrades and refurbishments or replacement of the ageing infrastructure and
plant modernisation.
The balance of the capital replacement reserve at 30 June 2014 was R211.1 million.
In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income in the statements of changes in equity, and not
via the statement of comprehensive income.

26.

Business Development reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to make provision to enable the creation of proactive business relationships with other entities.
The balance of the business development reserve at 30 June 2014 was R13.1 million.
In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income in the statements of changes in equity, and not
via the statement of comprehensive income.

27.

Maintenance reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund future significant unexpected maintenance costs.
The balance of the maintenance reserve at 30 June 2014 was R7.1 million.
In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income in the statements of changes in equity, and not
via the statement of comprehensive income.

28. Insurance reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund large deductibles for insurance claims.
The balance of the insurance reserve at 30 June 2014 was R3.8 million.
In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income in the statements of changes in equity, and not
via the statement of comprehensive income.
A n n u a l
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
Notes

2014

2013

R’000

R’000

29. Value added statement
Value-added is the measure of wealth the organisation has created in its operations. The statement below summarises the total
wealth created and shows how it was distributed to employees and other stakeholders who contributed to its creation.
Revenue

346 047

314 971

(38 466)

(37 999)

(102 212)

(103 005)

205 369

173 967

3 526

15 450

208 895

189 417

3

(78 685)

(65 587)

4

(6 036)

(11 181)

Depreciation/amortisation

(44 976)

(44 579)

Surplus retained

(79 198)

(68 070)

(208 895)

(189 417)

2

To the government
To suppliers of material and services
Value added
Other operating income
Total wealth created
Applied as follows:
To remunerate employees
Salaries, wages, pensions and other benefits
From financial institutions
Net interest paid to financial institutions
To replace assets

Total wealth distributed
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